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            1   PALM DESERT, CA             SATURDAY, FEBRUARY 5, 2005 
 
            2 
 
            3                       9:04 A.M. 
 
            4                         -O0O- 
 
            5 
 
            6 
 
            7                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  I'm not the usual chair 
 
            8   of the committee.  Mr. Crites is.  And we have an 
 
            9   unusual situation, so I'm going to call the meeting to 
 
           10   order as the vice chair.  I'm Gary Watts, and our DFO 
 
           11   will explain what situation we have this morning. 
 
           12                 MS. GEORGE:  Good morning, Momument 
 
           13   Advisory Committee.  Good morning, Public.  What is 
 
           14   happened is our five pending appointments for Pinyon 
 
           15   Pines Community Council, Rancho Mirage, Palm Desert, 
 
           16   UC Riverside, and Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla 
 
           17   Indians is still pending.  Appointments have not been 
 
           18   finalized.  So we received a call yesterday, Friday, 
 
           19   from our FACA expert in Washington, and what she 
 
           20   explained is everybody can sit at the table that is 
 
           21   within those five realms, potential appointees, except 
 
           22   for Pinyon -- and we will talk about that in a 
 
           23   moment -- but anyhow, the other four can sit, they can 
 
           24   provide information.  Buford as our normal chair can 
 
           25   coach Gary as our vice chair, but Gary will be our 
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            1   chair today because he is an appointed member by the 
 
            2   two secretaries. 
 
            3              And the only other item is voting.  If you 
 
            4   are not appointed, you can't vote.  Any other 
 
            5   questions or -- 
 
            6                 MS. HENDERSON:  What do we need for a 
 
            7   quorum that we can vote today? 
 
            8                 MS. GEORGE:  Our charter is eight. 
 
            9                 MS. ROCHE:  We have our quorum of three 
 
           10   appointed members. 
 
           11                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  With that being said, 
 
           12   that's the best bloodless coup I've seen yet.  I'll 
 
           13   have a roll call, please. 
 
           14                 MS. GEORGE:  Danella George, designated 
 
           15   federal official. 
 
           16                 MR. CRITES:  Buford Crites, not here. 
 
           17                 MS. WATLING:  Ruth Watling, anonymous. 
 
           18                 MR. BROCKMAN:  Bob Brockman, the same. 
 
           19                 MS. ROCHE:  Mary Roche, Indian Wells. 
 
           20                 MR. MUTH:  Allan Muth, another 
 
           21   nonentity. 
 
           22                 MS. BRENNAN:  Kathie Brennan. 
 
           23                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  Laurie Rosenthal. 
 
           24                 MS. ACHESON:  Gail Acheson. 
 
           25                 MR. LYMAN:  Bob Lyman. 
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            1                 MR. HAVERT:  Bill Havert, Mountains 
 
            2   Conservancy. 
 
            3                 MS. GONZALES-LYONS:  Barbara Lyons, not 
 
            4   here. 
 
            5                 MS. FREET:  Bary Freet, Cathedral City. 
 
            6                 MR. MORGAN:  Jeff Morgan, conservation 
 
            7   organization. 
 
            8                 MS. HENDERSON:  Terry Henderson, La 
 
            9   Quinta. 
 
           10                 MR. BOGERT:  Frank Bogert, Palm Springs. 
 
           11                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Gary Watts, State 
 
           12   Parks. 
 
           13              I would just like to remind the members of 
 
           14   the public we will have public hearing, public comment 
 
           15   at 11 o'clock.  We would ask you to contact some of 
 
           16   the staff out front and fill out a speaker sheet.  You 
 
           17   can do that at the break so we can minimize the 
 
           18   distraction, and we will make sure you get a chance to 
 
           19   make public comments later on in the meeting. 
 
           20                 MR. CRITES:  In my official role as 
 
           21   coach, might it be possible, being as though we have a 
 
           22   lot of folks here for one issue, to move that issue of 
 
           23   hang gliding and public comments that people might 
 
           24   want to make about that up in the meeting so folks can 
 
           25   speak their piece and go on their way and spend money 
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            1   in the valley? 
 
            2                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  I think that's a very 
 
            3   good suggestion, Mr. Chair.  Unless there is any 
 
            4   strong objection from the rest of the committee, we 
 
            5   will go ahead and reorder the agenda as such. 
 
            6                 MS. ROCHE:  May I make a suggestion? 
 
            7   Make sure that these people are here for this issue, 
 
            8   No. 1; and make sure, too, that they have filled out 
 
            9   the forms so when we are ready to go, they are there 
 
           10   ready and we are not holding up the process. 
 
           11                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  So maybe we will have 
 
           12   the presentation first and then take a five-minute 
 
           13   break after that to allow people to sign up if they 
 
           14   haven't, and then we will go to public comment from 
 
           15   there. 
 
           16              Is that okay with the rest of the 
 
           17   committee? 
 
           18                 MS. GEORGE:  Mr. Chair, I think we also 
 
           19   need to make sure that the public is aware that we 
 
           20   have a court reporter, and the court reporter is going 
 
           21   to need to hear them; so speak slowly, spell their 
 
           22   name, identify, those sorts of things. 
 
           23                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you.  Everybody 
 
           24   heard that?  Great. 
 
           25              I understand that Dr. Hurst is going to be 
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            1   making the presentation on hang gliding, so with that, 
 
            2   we will go ahead and turn the floor over to you, 
 
            3   Dr. Hurst. 
 
            4                 MR. HAVERT:  Approve the minutes? 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  We are changing the 
 
            6   order of the minutes. 
 
            7                 DR. HURST:  Not expecting that you were 
 
            8   going to change, I didn't have the computer turned on. 
 
            9   Here we go. 
 
           10              I'm going to start with some just brief 
 
           11   introductions of who we are here visiting with you 
 
           12   today.  A very brief history and some of our concerns 
 
           13   and points that we want to communicate to you in the 
 
           14   introduction for people's general comments from the 
 
           15   public. 
 
           16              I have a brief but distinct proposal.  And 
 
           17   again, just setting us up for public comments. 
 
           18              I'm Tad Hurst.  I'm a director of the 
 
           19   United States Hang Gliding Association, our national 
 
           20   organization that oversees the flights of hang gliders 
 
           21   and paragliders in the United States. 
 
           22              We have also here with us Jay Scott and 
 
           23   Mike Hilberath from the Elsinore Hang Gliding 
 
           24   Association.  These are two of the principal people 
 
           25   involved in trying to get the flying site here at 
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            1   Vista Point restored. 
 
            2              We also have a number of other people from 
 
            3   the Crestline Soaring Society and San Bernardino and 
 
            4   San Diego Hang Gliding and Paragliding Association and 
 
            5   Sylmar Hang Gliding Association and perhaps others. 
 
            6   We have a good number of pilots here to express 
 
            7   opinions today. 
 
            8              The short version of the history is that 
 
            9   Vista Point has been flown continuously by hang 
 
           10   gliders since the 1970s and also by paragliders as 
 
           11   they were introduced in the early 1990s.  We have many 
 
           12   other Southern California sites.  All the land we fly 
 
           13   off of is controlled by someone.  We have many sites 
 
           14   in National Forest Service land, sites that launch and 
 
           15   land in BLM land, municipal sites like Torrey Pines 
 
           16   and others, and private landowners. 
 
           17              This is not the first time we have had to 
 
           18   deal with folks concerned about what the effects of 
 
           19   hang gliding will be.  We do that with many rules, 
 
           20   requirements and ratings.  People have to be rated at 
 
           21   least a certain level to be able to fly certain sites. 
 
           22              I'll talk to you a little bit about Big 
 
           23   Black Mountain near Ramona, which is one that the San 
 
           24   Diego group has recently had a special use permit for. 
 
           25   We do that to protect the landowners from liability 
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            1   concerns and to preserve natural resources.  The Big 
 
            2   Black site, in fact, has endangered plant species. 
 
            3   And we are very careful to stay away from those.  We 
 
            4   know where they are.  We work with the Forest Service 
 
            5   personnel to make sure that we are not causing any 
 
            6   damage.  While we are in the air, we cause very little 
 
            7   damage to anything.  It's only the on-the-ground part 
 
            8   that does. 
 
            9              One of our major concern points, we are 
 
           10   certainly stakeholders in this particular issue, and 
 
           11   we weren't particularly included.  No one kind of told 
 
           12   us about it.  We could have known if we were reading 
 
           13   the papers.  It was certainly discussed in the papers, 
 
           14   but we didn't have any direct communication.  We think 
 
           15   if we would have been included, we might have been 
 
           16   able to affect the decision about hang gliding at the 
 
           17   Monument.  I expect there is a lot of information 
 
           18   about hang gliding and paragliding which is not well- 
 
           19   known to all of the folks on the committee.  We don't 
 
           20   think we were given the same consideration as some of 
 
           21   the other groups, hiking, bicycles, et cetera. 
 
           22              There are a number of studies that show 
 
           23   that high overflights are not an effect on Big Horn 
 
           24   Sheep.  Low overflights are a different issue.  Any 
 
           25   animal you fly right over the top of can be upset by a 
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            1   glider or anything flying.  We do this all the time. 
 
            2   We are constantly flying in places where we have to 
 
            3   avoid flying over horse farms or anything out in the 
 
            4   wild.  This is a very common problem for us, not 
 
            5   necessarily Big Horn Sheep. 
 
            6              I asked the folks at the San Diego meeting 
 
            7   two days ago, how many had seen a Big Horn Sheep 
 
            8   either on the ground or in the air.  And I think one 
 
            9   of the folks here said they had seen one of them on 
 
           10   the ground.  I have yet to talk to anyone who saw a 
 
           11   Big Horn Sheep while they are in the air.  Folks here 
 
           12   used to fly directly over the pens, and that was a 
 
           13   different issue. 
 
           14              Sheep are very much frightened by 
 
           15   pedestrians because that's how hunters used to 
 
           16   approach them.  They are generally not frightened by 
 
           17   anything more than 800 feet up or such.  After we 
 
           18   launch, hang gliders or paragliders, we want to be 
 
           19   1,000 feet off the ground.  Our goal when we launch in 
 
           20   an area like this is to fly over the top of San 
 
           21   Jacinto, not to just fly down to the bottom.  We do 
 
           22   not land willy-nilly, so we are going to be far off 
 
           23   the ground after launch. 
 
           24              I have just a little bit of a passage from 
 
           25   a proposal on the Anza Borego State Park that we made 
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            1   just a few years ago.  I'm not going to read all of 
 
            2   this, but it's in the record that I submitted. 
 
            3              If a hiker, mountain biker, or equestrian 
 
            4   comes across wildlife or Big Horn in particular, they 
 
            5   frighten them.  In contrast, once we are airborne, we 
 
            6   climb in thermal lift in altitudes to 1,000 to 12,000 
 
            7   feet over the terrain and typically occupy a flight 
 
            8   envelope between 6 and 1500 feet for the duration of 
 
            9   the flight.  This puts us well above the upper range 
 
           10   that occasionally produces response from Rocky 
 
           11   Mountain Big Horn Sheep. 
 
           12              Further noted is those responses that were 
 
           13   noted were made by helicopters.  They are a lot bigger 
 
           14   and a lot noisier than hang gliders are.  They are 
 
           15   silent through the air.  And here are some references 
 
           16   which I won't deal with specifically. 
 
           17              Also, our use of land is really compatible 
 
           18   with Big Horn Sheep.  We follow roads and paths.  From 
 
           19   this particular site, our course is to fly straight 
 
           20   down over the curvy parts of the highway to a landing 
 
           21   zone that's flat.  Except for the Big Horn Institute 
 
           22   at the bottom, there are going to be no sheep in that 
 
           23   area because there are pedestrians, bicycles, cars and 
 
           24   trucks.  We are staying over the areas where there are 
 
           25   things that are not consistent with sheep being there. 
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            1                 MR. HAVERT:  Didn't you say a moment ago 
 
            2   that your goal is to go up over San Jacinto peak? 
 
            3                 DR. HURST:  Yes. 
 
            4                MR. HAVERT:  Instead of going straight 
 
            5   down? 
 
            6                 DR. HURST:  Gravity does win 
 
            7   occasionally.  So if we do go down when we launch, we 
 
            8   will go straight down and land.  I'm never going to 
 
            9   come to this site with the intention of launching here 
 
           10   and landing there, but it can happen.  You do have to 
 
           11   land sooner or later. 
 
           12              We also fly out of San Diego from 
 
           13   Mt. Laguna, and we will fly all the way up and land by 
 
           14   Morongo.  And that happens three or four times a year, 
 
           15   very typically, right over the top of this area, not 
 
           16   launching or landing anywhere near here.  So there 
 
           17   aren't any sheep there. 
 
           18              So here is a picture of the site.  I 
 
           19   presume everyone here knows what this looks like.  The 
 
           20   old launch is here.  When we fly down, this is where 
 
           21   we used to land.  This is obviously not a landing zone 
 
           22   for us anymore. 
 
           23              The one we are talking about -- and I have 
 
           24   no personal knowledge of this, but the other folks 
 
           25   here do -- is in Palm Desert city-owned lot, which is 
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            1   remote enough from the Institute that we would come 
 
            2   into it from the other side and not disturb the sheep 
 
            3   in pens there.  And we will be flying over the 
 
            4   switchback roads all the way down, so it's certainly a 
 
            5   very occupied area.  And we stay away from things like 
 
            6   large brush, trees, ravines, rocks.  That's where 
 
            7   sheep really want to be.  Sheep really want to be 
 
            8   mostly where we don't want to be, mostly on the 
 
            9   ground, but in areas we don't consider a place to 
 
           10   land. 
 
           11              This is a picture taken Saturday by a 
 
           12   friend of mine who is not a hang glider pilot, in 
 
           13   Anza-Borrego State Park.  He is almost 40 years old. 
 
           14   He has spent many years in the wilderness and has 
 
           15   never seen them before.  He has a very nice picture of 
 
           16   these three youngsters.  The reason I brought this 
 
           17   picture is because he is really proud of it and he 
 
           18   wanted people to see it. 
 
           19              Secondarily, for the hang glider and 
 
           20   paraglider pilots here, I think they all will assure 
 
           21   you that this does not look like a landing zone of any 
 
           22   sort.  Our desire to be anywhere close to terrain that 
 
           23   looks like this is at least 1,000 feet or probably 
 
           24   more.  We don't want any part of this.  But the sheep 
 
           25   look nice.  This is another one of Sam's shots.  He 
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            1   told me this was the alpha ewe.  I'm not a sheep 
 
            2   expert. 
 
            3              So our use of the land in ways other than 
 
            4   concerning sheep is minimal.  We really don't touch 
 
            5   the land anywhere.  We launch off of places that are 
 
            6   flat, and we land in places that are flat and have no 
 
            7   vegetation.  And we are inherently environmentally 
 
            8   friendly.  Like Big Black, we know where the 
 
            9   endangered species places are, and we avoid them. 
 
           10              So my proposal is that we would like to 
 
           11   work toward an amendment to the plan that allows hang 
 
           12   gliding once again over the Monument.  The launch at 
 
           13   Vista Point, there is some debate whether it's in the 
 
           14   Caltrans easement or not.  We have another launch site 
 
           15   I have not seen or verified, but I have been told by 
 
           16   those who are local in the area that there is another 
 
           17   one that is not in the Monument area.  So we have 
 
           18   another place we can launch. 
 
           19              That launch site at Vista Point is 
 
           20   certainly not an issue for sheep.  There are people 
 
           21   standing there.  There are trucks.  There is no way 
 
           22   sheep are going to be close to there.  I think the 
 
           23   real issue is overflights on landing or whether we 
 
           24   come close to the sheep anywhere else. 
 
           25              We are working on a landing that's 
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            1   consistent with the City of Palm Desert, and it's not 
 
            2   on the Big Horn -- we are not going to be landing near 
 
            3   the Big Horn Institute.  We know we can't do that.  We 
 
            4   like sheep.  We don't want to disturb animals.  We 
 
            5   really like nature.  We like looking at it from above, 
 
            6   however.  So we could arrange ways to restrict low 
 
            7   level overflights.  We can tell you exactly where you 
 
            8   can get low making an approach, what the approach will 
 
            9   be.  We do this in a lot of other sites. 
 
           10              We're really concerned only on landing when 
 
           11   you are coming down.  If we are really high, it 
 
           12   doesn't bother anybody.  It bothers us when planes fly 
 
           13   past us.  And this will be regulated by the Elsinore 
 
           14   Hang Gliding Club.  Those are the -- that's the club 
 
           15   where the principals who have been working on this are 
 
           16   directly involved.  The United States Hang Gliding 
 
           17   Association usually assigns each site to one of the 
 
           18   member clubs. 
 
           19              It's not really clear if we need permission 
 
           20   to fly.  We have another launch that's not Monument 
 
           21   property.  We can land in the city property.  We get 
 
           22   okay to go there.  But we do want to work with the 
 
           23   Monument to make sure that whatever we do is 
 
           24   coordinated and makes sense and is the proper use of 
 
           25   the area we are using; it's consistent with not 
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            1   disturbing sheep and making sure that we are 
 
            2   recreating in a way that doesn't harm the wildlife 
 
            3   there.  We can do this. 
 
            4              I suggest we form a committee to formulate 
 
            5   some rules and guidelines that have to be approved, 
 
            6   certainly by this group, using perhaps Big Black 
 
            7   Mountain in Ramona as our model:  Limits on the number 
 
            8   of flights, cars on launch and landing sites. 
 
            9   Limiting the number of cars on launch at that 
 
           10   particular site doesn't make sense here.  But pilots 
 
           11   must be members of the club, so they have to be rated 
 
           12   at a certain level so they will land exactly where we 
 
           13   expect. 
 
           14              And at Big Black the Forest Service comes 
 
           15   out and monitors.  We call them before we fly, and 
 
           16   they come out often with a monitor to make sure we are 
 
           17   following all the rules.  And they have a sign about 
 
           18   this large about how we use it.  This is how we often 
 
           19   end up with sites that work. 
 
           20              I suggest we have three pilots, and two or 
 
           21   three Monument board members might be an appropriate 
 
           22   number to talk about how we might be able to come to 
 
           23   some terms consistent with all the other things going 
 
           24   on in the Monument and preserving the historic hang 
 
           25   gliding. 
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            1              And that's all my presentation.  I know a 
 
            2   lot of other pilots here have comments that they would 
 
            3   like to make in the public session.  I would answer 
 
            4   any questions you have, but I have already taken at 
 
            5   least my five minutes, but I apologize for that. 
 
            6                (Applause from the audience.) 
 
            7                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Al Muth. 
 
            8                 MR. MUTH:  The immediate question that 
 
            9   comes to mind is did you talk to the Big Horn 
 
           10   Institute and have you talked with Fish and Game and 
 
           11   Fish and Wildlife, who have jurisdiction because of 
 
           12   the endangered species question? 
 
           13                 DR. HURST:  I haven't personally talked 
 
           14   to Big Horn Institute.  Our general goal was to stay 
 
           15   away from the Institute itself and land on property 
 
           16   not controlled by the Monument. 
 
           17              Fish and Game, I haven't been in contact, 
 
           18   but the San Diego club has talked to Fish and Game 
 
           19   about different areas.  And one of the landing sites 
 
           20   we have coming out of Laguna Mountain is in the Fish 
 
           21   and Game property along the valley -- what is the name 
 
           22   of that valley?  San Felipe Valley.  So we are not 
 
           23   unaccustomed to talking with Fish and Game.  I haven't 
 
           24   personally been in contact with any of them, and I 
 
           25   don't know if that's a requirement or not.  We could 
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            1   include them on the Advisory Committee, as well, if we 
 
            2   want to come up with a plan that makes sense. 
 
            3                 MR. MUTH:  I assume that Fish and Game, 
 
            4   Fish and Wildlife would be required to comment on any 
 
            5   amendment that we would propose; is that correct, 
 
            6   Danella? 
 
            7                 MS. GEORGE:  Yes, we would have to go 
 
            8   back into a planning process, and we would have to go 
 
            9   into formal consultation if this was a proposed 
 
           10   action. 
 
           11                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Terry. 
 
           12                 MS. HENDERSON:  Terry Henderson, City of 
 
           13   La Quinta. 
 
           14              The first thing that comes to my mind is 
 
           15   the unregulated hang glider.  I have seen these folks 
 
           16   come off of Point Vista.  But my question is, I never 
 
           17   even thought that they were in a club.  And maybe two 
 
           18   are and the next two aren't.  How do we get a handle 
 
           19   on that? 
 
           20                 DR. HURST:  That's certainly an 
 
           21   excellent question and not the first time we have 
 
           22   heard questions like that.  And most of the sites 
 
           23   where we have special use permits or other 
 
           24   arrangements, you are required to be a member of the 
 
           25   club.  That's why, particularly as with the Big Black 
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            1   example, we have to call the day before we go.  No one 
 
            2   can just show up and walk up to the top and launch. 
 
            3   If they do and the rangers see it, they issue them a 
 
            4   ticket.  And we support that.  We don't want people 
 
            5   flying without them being officially authorized.  We 
 
            6   support the rangers in doing that.  We are not going 
 
            7   to be out here policing it ourselves, but if someone 
 
            8   shows up and if we have to call ahead of time to 
 
            9   arrange it, someone shows up to fly, that's not a 
 
           10   legal use of the permit. 
 
           11                 MS. HENDERSON:  Then a follow-up 
 
           12   question.  I would be curious as to why you put in 
 
           13   your presentation that you may not even need 
 
           14   permission to fly, the assumption on my part being 
 
           15   that the air space is out there and whoever wants to 
 
           16   use it can use it.  So that would also mean that the 
 
           17   nonmember flyer would have that right out there. 
 
           18                 THE WITNESS:  That's -- I understand 
 
           19   that question.  Here is why that is in there.  It's 
 
           20   certainly true if we launch off land that's not 
 
           21   controlled by the entities here, then that is 
 
           22   something that can be done.  We would really like to 
 
           23   launch off the old launch point at Vista Point because 
 
           24   it's the best and safest rather than the alternative 
 
           25   launch.  We would really like to do that. 
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            1              Other than that, we would in general just 
 
            2   not be telling people where this other launch point 
 
            3   is.  We don't want people flying over there that are 
 
            4   not under our control.  It's possible we could fly 
 
            5   here without permission, but I don't want to do that. 
 
            6   I want to make sure we do something that makes 
 
            7   perfectly good sense.  We do fly from Laguna Mountain 
 
            8   to Pioneer Town right over the top of the same areas. 
 
            9   But we are usually thousands of feet up when that 
 
           10   happens. 
 
           11                 MR. MORGAN:  The point I would like to 
 
           12   make is that we went through this over a long period 
 
           13   of time.  We had dozens of meetings.  Certain members 
 
           14   of the public attended in large numbers; some, hardly 
 
           15   anyone came.  But we have visited this issue.  And 
 
           16   there was a Record of Decision made.  It was posted in 
 
           17   the Federal Register.  And to change that decision, I 
 
           18   believe you would have to go through a very, very long 
 
           19   planning process with an EI and consultations with 
 
           20   Fish and Wildlife.  And it's a long process. 
 
           21              It's kind of late at this stage once this 
 
           22   has already been done.  This was signed a year ago and 
 
           23   posted in the Federal Register. 
 
           24                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Before we go too far, 
 
           25   too -- Bill, I will get right to you -- but just so 
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            1   the audience knows, this is an advisory committee.  It 
 
            2   advises the federal agencies on their operation of the 
 
            3   Monument.  And our charter was to help develop a 
 
            4   management plan for the Monument, which we did.  It 
 
            5   went through the entire environmental process, 
 
            6   regulations and so on, and was adopted by the federal 
 
            7   agencies. 
 
            8              So just so you all know, we don't make 
 
            9   policies for the Monument agencies that operate the 
 
           10   park.  And I think a lot of the thrust of your 
 
           11   presentation would be better served dealing directly 
 
           12   with the agencies that are responsible.  And if they 
 
           13   decided they wanted to change certain policies within 
 
           14   that plan, it's within their purview to do so.  That's 
 
           15   my understanding, and I will -- Danella, do you have 
 
           16   anything to add to that? 
 
           17                 MS. GEORGE:  I'm going to defer to Gail 
 
           18   on this as the field manager. 
 
           19                 MS. ACHESON:  That's correct.  The 
 
           20   Monument Advisory Committee does make recommendations 
 
           21   to the federal agencies, and we can act on those or 
 
           22   not. 
 
           23              So I think it's appropriate for you to make 
 
           24   this presentation to the Monument Advisory Committee, 
 
           25   whatever you decide to do as a group, and bring that 
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            1   recommendation to the federal agencies.  Then we would 
 
            2   take it under advisement and decide whether we wanted 
 
            3   to amend the plan. 
 
            4                 DR. HURST:  It seems reasonable to me 
 
            5   that if we can't convince the number of people on the 
 
            6   Monument Advisory Committee to in an advisory role 
 
            7   suggest that we can come to some terms over permitting 
 
            8   hang gliding with restrictions, then there is very 
 
            9   little chance that we would go to the direct agencies 
 
           10   and be successful either.  So I think it's a good 
 
           11   starting point. 
 
           12                 MR. HAVERT:  My question is perhaps 
 
           13   again really addressed to Gail, but the question is 
 
           14   jurisdiction here and who has to issue what permit. 
 
           15   Is the location at Vista Point on BLM land, and 
 
           16   therefore, is there a use permit?  Is that what we are 
 
           17   really talking about here that BLM has to issue? 
 
           18                 MS. ACHESON:  To the best of my 
 
           19   knowledge -- I'm going to ask Jim -- where is he?  We 
 
           20   did investigate the right-of-way that Caltrans has up 
 
           21   in Vista Point, and it's a 1937 right-of-way that 
 
           22   gives them authority to build, construct roads and 
 
           23   anything associated with transportation.  It does not 
 
           24   allow them to permit any other kind of activity that's 
 
           25   outside their grant.  So the jurisdiction would be 
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            1   with the Bureau of Land Management. 
 
            2                 MR. HAVERT:  Is the vehicle for an 
 
            3   organized use like that the issuance of a special use 
 
            4   permit? 
 
            5                 MR. FOOTE:  Jim Foote, BLM. 
 
            6              Not necessarily the issuance in this case, 
 
            7   and since it's probably noncommercial activity, it's a 
 
            8   noncompetitive activity, hence there is discretion on 
 
            9   our issuance.  If during the planning process there 
 
           10   was a decision made that a permit was required, that 
 
           11   would follow suit, and we would issue permits.  If 
 
           12   there is no planning decision requiring that permit, 
 
           13   then we would probably not be a position to issue 
 
           14   permits. 
 
           15                 MR. HAVERT:  For purposes of that piece 
 
           16   of land, is it the CDCA plan that governs it or does 
 
           17   the National Monument Management Plan specify whether 
 
           18   a permit is necessary or not? 
 
           19                 MR. FOOTE:  The vehicle could be 
 
           20   potentially either one.  However, neither of those 
 
           21   documents speaks to the requirement for a permit. 
 
           22   Permits are addressed under our regulations, but we 
 
           23   can make planning decisions that require issuance of 
 
           24   permits. 
 
           25                 MR. HAVERT:  What I am trying to get at 
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            1   is what is the current condition of the -- the current 
 
            2   situation with respect to use of that site as a take- 
 
            3   off point?  And then I guess the other question would 
 
            4   be what is the situation with a current landing zone? 
 
            5              Is this something where -- actually, aside 
 
            6   from whatever is in the Monument Plan, which is, 
 
            7   again, sort of the advisory document, what is the 
 
            8   actual situation relative to -- is a permit required 
 
            9   for this activity right now and has some decision been 
 
           10   made? 
 
           11                 MR. FOOTE:  It's a prohibited activity. 
 
           12   We can't issue permits that are inconsistent with the 
 
           13   land use plan. 
 
           14                 MR. HAVERT:  That plan is the CDCA? 
 
           15                 MR. FOOTE:  No.  The Monument Plan 
 
           16   speaks to that specifically about that prohibition. 
 
           17                 MR. MORGAN:  It's a decision which 
 
           18   amends the BLM's CDCA Fund, and the money would fund. 
 
           19                 MR. HAVERT:  It's currently a prohibited 
 
           20   activity under BLM's jurisdiction? 
 
           21                 MR. FOOTE:  Correct. 
 
           22                 MS. GEORGE:  And a lot of that was 
 
           23   through the informal consultation process.  We were 
 
           24   able to stay in informal consultation with US Fish and 
 
           25   Wildlife Service.  Had this been a preferred 
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            1   alternative, that activity would have ramped us into 
 
            2   formal consultation, just different kind of process. 
 
            3                 MR. CRITES:  Just very simply, while 
 
            4   Jeff is correct, we went through a process, whether 
 
            5   people were informed, weren't informed, did 
 
            6   participate or not, here we are.  There are processes 
 
            7   that don't take forever to amend plans, should that be 
 
            8   what agencies choose to do. 
 
            9              And certainly my suggestion to the chair 
 
           10   would be that he consider asking for volunteers for a 
 
           11   committee to look at this and come back to us at our 
 
           12   next meeting with a point of view about whether or 
 
           13   not -- what our advice ought to be.  And then the 
 
           14   whole committee can consider what they do or don't 
 
           15   believe the advice should be. 
 
           16                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Hang on.  Terry's 
 
           17   first, and then Ruth and then Mary. 
 
           18                 MS. HENDERSON:  Just to follow up on 
 
           19   what Buford was saying, which was in essence pretty 
 
           20   close to what I was going to say, it seems to me as we 
 
           21   adopted this plan that there were amendment procedures 
 
           22   in here that are clearly written out, and that they 
 
           23   are not that complicated or time consuming.  And the 
 
           24   best way to get to that probably would not be today. 
 
           25   I don't think we are all prepared to do that. 
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            1              But I'm sure a smaller committee could work 
 
            2   through the challenges here and bring it back to us in 
 
            3   abbreviated form.  And then we could deal with whether 
 
            4   or not we even want to go forward, once we had a 
 
            5   handle on what it is we need to do. 
 
            6                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Ruth. 
 
            7                 MS. WATLING:  Ruth Watling.  I drive the 
 
            8   highway and have for more than 20 years.  Sheep do 
 
            9   come to Vista Point.  I have seen them within 100 
 
           10   yards of Vista Point. 
 
           11                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Mary. 
 
           12                 MS. ROCHE:  One of the proposals you 
 
           13   were making was that the landing site be in the City 
 
           14   of Palm Desert.  Is this something that you have done 
 
           15   initial work on contacting the City of Palm Desert to 
 
           16   make sure that a landing site on their city-owned 
 
           17   property is an amenable proposition?  And this 
 
           18   certainly needs to be addressed before it even goes to 
 
           19   any committee or anything else to look at what the 
 
           20   possibility is.  No, you haven't? 
 
           21                 MR. CRITES:  I don't think it has to 
 
           22   come before the other. 
 
           23                 MR. HILBERATH:  Michael Hilberath.  I 
 
           24   have been in contact with the City of Palm Desert, 
 
           25   with Mr. Winklefleck.  Unfortunately, he has just 
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            1   left.  And so I took it up with someone -- I believe 
 
            2   his name is Steve.  And so it has been started -- the 
 
            3   process with the City for a landing zone and use of a 
 
            4   piece of City-owned property. 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Buford. 
 
            6                 MR. CRITES:  As the City of Palm Desert, 
 
            7   we certainly don't want to corner that.  And if Indian 
 
            8   Wells would prefer -- 
 
            9                 MS. ROCHE:  No.  No.  We don't have a 
 
           10   site, Buford.  You may have it.  I just wanted to make 
 
           11   sure that -- it sounded like you were far enough in 
 
           12   your plans that you have selected a site, and that it 
 
           13   was an approved site.  And just for our benefits in 
 
           14   analyzing this, I wanted to make sure that it had 
 
           15   gotten the approval of the City, and it doesn't sound 
 
           16   to me like it has.  All that has happened is that you 
 
           17   have made contact with the City, but it obviously 
 
           18   hasn't gone to the policy level to make a decision. 
 
           19                 DR. HURST:  I think that's true. 
 
           20                 MR. HILBERATH:  It's just like starting 
 
           21   the discussions here with the MAC.  It's just started. 
 
           22                 DR. HURST:  I consider that a requisite, 
 
           23   having a landing site approved for any ultimate 
 
           24   solution with this entire flying site.  We have to 
 
           25   have a place we know we can land.  And that seems like 
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            1   the most reasonable approach to get one.  We know we 
 
            2   are not going to be landing on the property of the Big 
 
            3   Horn Sheep Institute. 
 
            4                 MR. HAVERT:  I was going to support 
 
            5   Buford's recommendation and just add on to that, that 
 
            6   I think whatever subcommittee delves into this should 
 
            7   come back to this group with perspectives from all of 
 
            8   the different interest groups here, including the hang 
 
            9   gliding community, including the City, including Fish 
 
           10   and Wildlife Service, including the Big Horn 
 
           11   Institute, just so we have as much information on the 
 
           12   different points of view on that, as well. 
 
           13              And also, obviously, be able to outline 
 
           14   whatever process would have to be gone through to 
 
           15   effect a change.  And we would then as a whole be 
 
           16   better informed as to what our options are and where 
 
           17   we might want to go with this. 
 
           18                 MS. ROCHE:  Do we need a motion to put 
 
           19   this into committee? 
 
           20                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  I was going to say I'm 
 
           21   hesitating to do that simply as the acting chair 
 
           22   today, and I would want to see what the entire feeling 
 
           23   is of the entire committee, so maybe a motion would be 
 
           24   appropriate and then discussion regarding that. 
 
           25                 MS. ROCHE:  Okay.  Buford, why don't you 
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            1   make it?  Oh, you can't. 
 
            2                 MS. GEORGE:  He can coach and 
 
            3   facilitate. 
 
            4                 MR. CRITES:  It's the best day in the 
 
            5   world for me. 
 
            6                 MS. ROCHE:  And for the rest of us. 
 
            7   Well, you give and you take; right? 
 
            8              I make a motion that we do form a 
 
            9   subcommittee to evaluate and investigate the proposal 
 
           10   made by the Hang Gliding Association, and that that 
 
           11   committee then reports back to us with their further 
 
           12   in-depth investigation.  I can't do anything more than 
 
           13   that. 
 
           14                 MS. HENDERSON:  Second. 
 
           15                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  We have a motion and a 
 
           16   second.  Let's have discussion. 
 
           17                 MR. MORGAN:  The committee wouldn't be a 
 
           18   subcommittee of the Monument Advisory Committee, or 
 
           19   would it be a larger group that involves other people? 
 
           20                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  As I heard it according 
 
           21   to -- Mary, do you want to clarify it? 
 
           22                 MS. ROCHE:  I think it definitely needs 
 
           23   to be several people -- personally, from the Monument 
 
           24   Advisory Committee.  But I would think that we need to 
 
           25   have the BLM as part of it because they are 
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            1   administering it.  And any other entity that has 
 
            2   jurisdiction, and particularly, we got some memos 
 
            3   today that were on our -- were here today that we 
 
            4   really haven't had a chance to go through.  But where 
 
            5   it's prohibited, we need to have any jurisdiction 
 
            6   where hang gliding is prohibited to be part of this so 
 
            7   we understand that rationale. 
 
            8                 MS. HENDERSON:  Terry Henderson.  Would 
 
            9   that include some hang gliding folks?  And can we put 
 
           10   folks that are not official on that committee? 
 
           11                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  That's a long amendment 
 
           12   to the motion, so maybe Buford could get us out of 
 
           13   this. 
 
           14                 MR. CRITES:  I think technically the 
 
           15   subcommittee would be members of the Monument Advisory 
 
           16   Committee and would accept data, input and discussion 
 
           17   from interested parties at noticed meetings.  And that 
 
           18   could include environmental organizations, use groups, 
 
           19   cities, whoever wished to.  And certainly informally 
 
           20   from the wildlife agencies, should they choose to 
 
           21   participate.  And then at some point they will 
 
           22   formally participate, should that go that far. 
 
           23                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  So Jeff, does that 
 
           24   answer your question? 
 
           25                 MR. MORGAN:  Yes. 
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            1                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  And does that wrap 
 
            2   itself up in the motion?  Hearing nobody say no -- 
 
            3   Bob? 
 
            4                 MR. BROCKMAN:  The question would be, 
 
            5   would this subcommittee have the same restrictions 
 
            6   that we had when we tried to form subcommittees for 
 
            7   the development of the plan in terms of noticing? 
 
            8                 MS. GEORGE:  What we can do is we can 
 
            9   put it on the Web site.  We can do a press release 
 
           10   when you are going to meet.  We can call it a work 
 
           11   group, not a subcommittee.  And then you come back to 
 
           12   this body in full FACA disclosure.  And we are covered 
 
           13   there. 
 
           14                 MR. CRITES:  I want to be fully FACA'd. 
 
           15                 MS. GEORGE:  Is Eddie Kono here today? 
 
           16   No.  I would suggest, because of the constitution of 
 
           17   the Advisory Committee, that thing with Fish and Game 
 
           18   and State Parks, we might want to look at Eddie also 
 
           19   being on there, and from some e-mails that he sent. 
 
           20                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  If the working group is 
 
           21   going to be constituted as the other working groups 
 
           22   were, then that wouldn't be a problem.  Okay.  So a 
 
           23   lot of words, but I think we all grasp the intent of 
 
           24   the motion. 
 
           25                 MS. HENDERSON:  Yes. 
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            1                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Any other discussion? 
 
            2   I just want to go on the record and say I understand 
 
            3   the importance of this issue to everyone in the room, 
 
            4   and I tend to agree with everybody to some extent.  We 
 
            5   did visit this issue.  I remember when we talked about 
 
            6   it at the committee meetings.  We talked about it more 
 
            7   than other recreational uses, actually, so it wasn't 
 
            8   given short shrift and ignored.  And it wasn't a 
 
            9   unanimous choice of the committee, but we did come up 
 
           10   with the final recommendation. 
 
           11              And I would just counsel the rest of the 
 
           12   committee that I think it's a dangerous precedent to 
 
           13   start going down the road to visit every issue to 
 
           14   amend the plan.  Certainly, we can make advisory 
 
           15   decisions and advise the Monument manager, but I hate 
 
           16   to start dealing with hang gliders today and rock 
 
           17   collectors tomorrow and gun shooters the next day and 
 
           18   motorcycle riders the next meeting.  And all of a 
 
           19   sudden, we are into policy making for the -- and 
 
           20   that's just my perspective.  So I just wanted to weigh 
 
           21   in on the record on that. 
 
           22              So with that, we have had a motion.  It's 
 
           23   been seconded and discussion is done, so we will take 
 
           24   a vote. 
 
           25              All those in favor, raise your hands. 
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            1   Danella, are you counting?  Eight.  All those opposed. 
 
            2   One.  Okay. 
 
            3              Okay.  It's almost a quarter till.  I want 
 
            4   to make sure to remind everybody that if you want to 
 
            5   speak, we need a speaker slip.  The motion has 
 
            6   carried.  We are going to form a committee to look at 
 
            7   this issue.  So you are certainly welcome to -- we 
 
            8   want to hear your views.  We very rarely have this 
 
            9   many people, and I think before we go to public 
 
           10   hearing, I want to take a short break. 
 
           11                 MR. MUTH:  Do we want to formulate that 
 
           12   committee now? 
 
           13                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Do we have any 
 
           14   volunteers that want to serve from the MAC? 
 
           15                 MR. MUTH:  I would. 
 
           16                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Jeffery, Bill, Al, and 
 
           17   Kathie, and that's probably a good number. 
 
           18                 MR. MUTH:  I think the City of Palm 
 
           19   Desert needs to be included. 
 
           20                 MS. ROCHE:  I would agree. 
 
           21                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Buford, you have been 
 
           22   nominated. 
 
           23                 MS. HENDERSON:  Is five -- at some point 
 
           24   that's part of the quorum or something of the 
 
           25   committee?  Eight is the quorum? 
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            1                 MS. GEORGE:  It's just a working group. 
 
            2                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Can we have a volunteer 
 
            3   to chair that working group? 
 
            4                 MS. ROCHE:  Al. 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Al, you have been 
 
            6   volunteered.  Will you accept? 
 
            7                 MR. MUTH:  I reckon. 
 
            8                 MR. CRITES:  I think it's appropriate to 
 
            9   note that the acting chair of the working group, as 
 
           10   part of that, will have the experience of actually 
 
           11   going hang gliding off of this point. 
 
           12                (Applause from the audience.) 
 
           13                 MR. MUTH:  Would that be before or after 
 
           14   the parachute? 
 
           15                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Mr. Muth, would you 
 
           16   consult with Dr. Hurst and also our Monument managers 
 
           17   to find others that would be appropriate to include in 
 
           18   your working group?  Okay. 
 
           19                 DR. HURST:  Since we are taking the move 
 
           20   to make that committee, that perhaps a lot of the 
 
           21   comments that all of the folks are here to say may be 
 
           22   more appropriately addressed to that committee.  And 
 
           23   if in consensus people would rather submit written 
 
           24   records at this time than speak, we could shorten up 
 
           25   your day a little bit. 
                                                                     36 
 
                    GILLESPIE REPORTING & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT, INC. 



            1                 MR. HILBERATH:  I second that motion. 
 
            2   Let's go flying. 
 
            3                 DR. HURST:  Another site, another place. 
 
            4                 MR. HAVERT:  Take Al with you. 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  We will take a short 
 
            6   break, and if you don't need to speak, you don't have 
 
            7   to.  But this committee would love to hear public 
 
            8   input.  We very rarely get this many.  We would like 
 
            9   to get your views. 
 
           10                 MS. HENDERSON:  Name and address. 
 
           11                 DR. HURST:  And I'm personally quite 
 
           12   willing to take you on a nice little flight, or anyone 
 
           13   else on the committee, to see exactly what we are 
 
           14   talking about.  Maybe a paragliding flight.  It's a 
 
           15   little slower, a little more easily controlled on 
 
           16   landing.  So anyone who is interested in that, I would 
 
           17   be glad to show you exactly what the experience is 
 
           18   like, as well. 
 
           19                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  We will start back in 
 
           20   five minutes, and we will open the public hearing for 
 
           21   15 minutes.  Then we will get back on track with the 
 
           22   agenda.  And we will have another opportunity for 
 
           23   public comment at 11 o'clock. 
 
           24   (Brief recess from 9:45 a.m. to 9:51 a.m. was taken.) 
 
           25                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  We are going to open up 
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            1   the public hearing portion of the hearing today.  When 
 
            2   your name is called, please gave your name and 
 
            3   address.  If you do not feel comfortable with your 
 
            4   street address, just give the town you are from.  And 
 
            5   speak loud and clear and slowly for our reporter, 
 
            6   please.  And please try to limit your comments to 
 
            7   three minutes.  And once again, you all are encouraged 
 
            8   to submit your comments in writing, as well, if you 
 
            9   feel the need to and want to go into much greater 
 
           10   detail. 
 
           11              So our first speaker, Mike Harper. 
 
           12                 MR. HARPER:  My name is Mike Harper and 
 
           13   I live in Dana Point, California. 
 
           14              I have been flying since 1973, hang 
 
           15   gliders.  Back then they were quite crude aircraft 
 
           16   compared to today.  And the group that was flying back 
 
           17   then was quite crude compared to today too.  Today we 
 
           18   are a lot more responsible.  We all have come of age. 
 
           19   We all have responsible jobs.  And we would like to 
 
           20   work with the committee to open Vista Point back up 
 
           21   for flying. 
 
           22              And one of the things I found on the 
 
           23   Internet was Mark Jorgensen, who is a senior biologist 
 
           24   and works at Anza-Borrego.  He uses aircraft to 
 
           25   monitor the sheep's habitat.  And I think if they are 
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            1   doing that with aircraft, they must understand they 
 
            2   are trying to protect the Big Horn Sheep.  They must 
 
            3   not be trying to threaten them in any way, so they are 
 
            4   staying plenty high enough above them and realize 
 
            5   these aircraft aren't going to be bothering the Big 
 
            6   Horn Sheep at the altitudes they are flying.  So I 
 
            7   don't think aircraft flying above Big Horn Sheep is 
 
            8   detrimental to them.  Thanks. 
 
            9                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Mike. 
 
           10              Bill Soderquist. 
 
           11                 MR. SODERQUIST:  Bill Soderquist, 39481 
 
           12   Oak Cliff Drive in Temecula. 
 
           13              I have been flying the site since about 
 
           14   1989.  I'm here to dispel the fact that we do fly low 
 
           15   over the ground, that we are a low-flying aircraft. 
 
           16   This perception comes from pictures of ocean sites 
 
           17   where ridge lift is a source for flight. 
 
           18              This is a thermal site where the low flying 
 
           19   only occurs actually between the launch area and the 
 
           20   landing area.  On a thermal site, you always have to 
 
           21   stay within glide ratio of your landing zone.  As a 
 
           22   result, our flights out of that area between the 
 
           23   landing zone and the launch area occur at sufficient 
 
           24   altitude to glide back to the landing area. 
 
           25              This puts us well out of any threat 
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            1   awareness area of any species on the ground.  As an 
 
            2   example, to be two miles away from the landing zone, 
 
            3   we must be a minimum of 1700 feet high.  And at 10 
 
            4   miles away from the landing zone back up actually in 
 
            5   the Monument area, we would have to be a mile and 
 
            6   three-quarters high.  At that point we are -- you can 
 
            7   hardly even see us, let alone be a threat to the 
 
            8   ground.  We don't even put shadows on the ground at 
 
            9   that altitude.  But in order to be able to get back to 
 
           10   where we're going to land, imagine an inverted tree 
 
           11   away from -- the Christmas tree.  So the farther out 
 
           12   we go, the farther back into the Monument, the higher 
 
           13   and higher and higher and higher we have to get. 
 
           14              So the only time we are low is, like, over 
 
           15   the highway area where you have highway and tourists 
 
           16   and people.  And Big Horn Sheep, if they are hanging 
 
           17   around the highway, they are not going to be bothered 
 
           18   by a low flying hang glider. 
 
           19              The other part is the ruling agencies have 
 
           20   gone through considerable trouble to be sure that I'm 
 
           21   notified that I can't fly there.  But yet for years I 
 
           22   have been part of the forest planning process in both 
 
           23   the Cleveland and in the San Bernardino National 
 
           24   Forests and in the planning processes for the National 
 
           25   Parks.  And I'm listed as both a representative and 
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            1   individual of hang gliding. 
 
            2              If we had been notified of this original 
 
            3   rule-making process with as much diligence as they 
 
            4   made sure we are made known of the banning, we 
 
            5   wouldn't be in this position, I don't believe, because 
 
            6   we could have dispelled the myth that hang gliding is 
 
            7   a threat to the Big Horn Sheep or any other species. 
 
            8                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  George Zelenz. 
 
            9                 MR. ZELENZ:  George Zelenz, 61421 Navajo 
 
           10   Trail, Joshua Tree. 
 
           11              I would like to speak to the Council and 
 
           12   Advisory Committee as a beginning pilot.  I am only 
 
           13   two flights off of student status.  And I have been 
 
           14   learning in the San Bernardino area where the site is 
 
           15   rated for beginners such as myself.  And while there 
 
           16   are many enticing areas to fly, they are actually 
 
           17   above my current rating. 
 
           18              And I just want to say that I'm not alone 
 
           19   as a student; that we are very conscientious about 
 
           20   flying over our heads.  And I don't think you will 
 
           21   ever see anyone under-qualified flying Vista Point 
 
           22   because we are a very responsible group (Cell phone 
 
           23   interruption) -- mostly responsible group. 
 
           24             (Laughter) 
 
           25              And I would just like to say that we -- as 
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            1   a fellow member of the USHGA, that we are all very 
 
            2   conscientious about not screwing up.  And we would 
 
            3   treat that site with the greatest care, maybe even 
 
            4   more than other sites. 
 
            5              Thank you. 
 
            6                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Lawrence Chamblee? 
 
            7                 MR. CHAMBLEE:  Good morning.  Thank you 
 
            8   very much for hearing us this morning. 
 
            9              I am a past president of the Sylmar Hang 
 
           10   Gliding Association, which is the main hang gliding 
 
           11   club in metropolitan Los Angeles.  We took the drive 
 
           12   down here today to be with our brothers who use this 
 
           13   site. 
 
           14              I have many things that I would like to 
 
           15   say, but in this short time, I would just like to say 
 
           16   that to hang gliding, site preservation is precious. 
 
           17   Although it seems that the sky is big and this range 
 
           18   of mountains is huge, actually the number of places 
 
           19   where you can engage in hang gliding is very small and 
 
           20   depends on the weather, the direction of the wind, the 
 
           21   orientation of the launch site to the sun, and other 
 
           22   factors. 
 
           23              I prepared this document for the US Forest 
 
           24   Service in connection with the revision of the Forest 
 
           25   Plan for the Cleveland, San Bernardino and Angeles 
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            1   National Forests.  They adopted many of the 
 
            2   recommendations that we made in this document.  And 
 
            3   this is one document that I would like to make 
 
            4   available to the newly-formed subcommittee to explain 
 
            5   to you why preserving the sites that we have and that 
 
            6   we have had is really, really precious to us. 
 
            7              Development is taking up all the land right 
 
            8   up to the base of the mountains.  And as Bill 
 
            9   described a minute ago, you have to have a landing 
 
           10   zone within a glide range of the launch site.  This 
 
           11   doubly restricts the number of launch sites available 
 
           12   because you also have to have an acceptable landing 
 
           13   site. 
 
           14              In the 15 years that I have been flying, I 
 
           15   have seen the flying sites diminish in our area by 
 
           16   about half.  We have just lost two sites in Palmdale, 
 
           17   which are the only sites that can be flown in that 
 
           18   area on winter days like we have been having, with 
 
           19   fine weather, but Santa Ana winds.  On those days the 
 
           20   normal south-facing launches that we use are not 
 
           21   usable because the wind is blowing down them, and you 
 
           22   can't launch downwind. 
 
           23              I'm an outdoorsman.  I'm a hiker in the 
 
           24   Sierras.  My wife and I are members of the Sierra 
 
           25   Club.  We value very much wilderness values.  We don't 
                                                                     43 
 
                    GILLESPIE REPORTING & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT, INC. 



            1   want our activity to interfere with mountain sheep or 
 
            2   any other form of wildlife.  We would like, though, 
 
            3   the decision makers to make an informed decision about 
 
            4   any possible effect of hang gliding on wildlife and on 
 
            5   the terrain in general. 
 
            6              We think we are light users of the land. 
 
            7   We think that we are -- our use of the land is barely 
 
            8   perceptible to people.  When we are chasing pilots on 
 
            9   100 mile flights, it's often hard to tell that they 
 
           10   are even in the sky.  And as Bill said, the only time 
 
           11   that they come near the ground -- or the only time we 
 
           12   want to be near the ground -- is when we are intending 
 
           13   to land and in the places where we are intending to 
 
           14   land.  And they are usually developed places, usually 
 
           15   within 100 yards or so of a road because you don't 
 
           16   want to carry that 90-pound hang glider farther than 
 
           17   you have to. 
 
           18              We would ask that you please do take 
 
           19   another look at it.  And I appreciate that you took a 
 
           20   look at it before, with due notice in the Federal 
 
           21   Register.  I take your point.  But we would like you 
 
           22   to please consider all of the factors that go into it 
 
           23   and make the best informed decision that you can 
 
           24   possibly make in making recommendations to the BLM on 
 
           25   this issue. 
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            1              We think you will find that the impact of 
 
            2   hang gliding is going to be very small and will not be 
 
            3   harmful to the mountain sheep.  We appreciate very 
 
            4   much that interest also.  We think that these possibly 
 
            5   apparently conflicting interests can be resolved with 
 
            6   appropriate uses of hang gliding. 
 
            7              It was pointed out briefly that at the 
 
            8   present time hang gliding is a prohibited activity. 
 
            9   That's also the case in National Parks, yet we have 
 
           10   been able to work out agreements with Yosemite 
 
           11   National Park and other National Parks to make 
 
           12   exceptions for hang gliding activity which is operated 
 
           13   under conditions that the agency sets in a way that 
 
           14   takes into account everyone's considerations. 
 
           15              Thanks very much for your time. 
 
           16                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Lawrence. 
 
           17             (Applause from the audience.) 
 
           18              Kenneth Andrews. 
 
           19                 MR. ANDREWS:  Kenneth Andrews, 64 North 
 
           20   Mar Vista in Pasadena.  I'm the current president of 
 
           21   the Sylmar Hang Gliding Association. 
 
           22              I merely wanted to make a couple very quick 
 
           23   comments.  And that is that not only are we not 
 
           24   detrimental to the environment, often we can be 
 
           25   beneficial.  An active hang gliding group, for 
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            1   example, in Sylmar has produced several people who 
 
            2   have helped the Forest Service pick up litter and 
 
            3   pieces of glass that endanger the California Condor 
 
            4   there. 
 
            5              We have worked with the Forest Service to 
 
            6   pick up litter and illegal dumping on the roads.  In 
 
            7   the community, we support our local nonprofit 
 
            8   organizations.  Of course, we patronize the local 
 
            9   businesses, and we work with the town to plan for land 
 
           10   use, maintaining open spaces and responsible land 
 
           11   development.  So not only are we not harmful, I think 
 
           12   a good hang gliding club can be beneficial.  Thanks. 
 
           13                (Applause from the audience.) 
 
           14                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Kenneth. 
 
           15   Excuse me in advance if I mispronounce your name. 
 
           16   Jill Nephew? 
 
           17                 MS. NEPHEW:  Yes.  Jill Nephew, 3819 
 
           18   Miramar Street, La Jolla, California. 
 
           19              I want to kind of take that point to the 
 
           20   next step and propose a couple of ideas where the 
 
           21   committee and the general public might be pleased to 
 
           22   have us present. 
 
           23              I was personally present with a local 
 
           24   flying club in Indio that had correctly identified a 
 
           25   species of endangered bird that the Peregrine Fund 
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            1   didn't know existed there.  And they came out and I 
 
            2   was with them on the hike to see the site.  They knew 
 
            3   everything about the bird, the nesting area, and 
 
            4   basically were very thankful that the community had 
 
            5   been able to identify an endangered species. 
 
            6              We are a unique community in that we are 
 
            7   very strong conservationists, at least I am, and we 
 
            8   have this noninteracting line of sight.  So I think 
 
            9   not only could a relationship be easily formed through 
 
           10   more working with people at these sites to educate our 
 
           11   entire community about what we should be looking for 
 
           12   and we should be doing, but also have it be an 
 
           13   exchange of what we are seeing and what we could 
 
           14   potentially be monitoring during our flights. 
 
           15                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Jill. 
 
           16              Scott Farnsworth. 
 
           17                 MS. FARNSWORTH:  My name is Scott 
 
           18   Farnsworth.  I'm a local Coachella Valley resident.  I 
 
           19   have lived here in 15 years.  I live in Thousand 
 
           20   Palms.  I work at a local auto dealership here. 
 
           21              Currently I have to drive a minimum of 70 
 
           22   miles to fly and drive all the way to the Andy Jackson 
 
           23   Air Park in San Bernardino.  I personally would love 
 
           24   to be able to fly in my backyard.  I know I spend a 
 
           25   lot of money on flying.  It's my favorite sport.  And 
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            1   I know that other members of the flying community 
 
            2   would invest dollars in this community also if this 
 
            3   site were reopened to fly. 
 
            4              Thank you. 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Scott. 
 
            6   Michael Hilberath. 
 
            7                 MR. HILBERATH:  Michael Hilberath, 
 
            8   Mission Viejo, California.  I'm vice president of the 
 
            9   Elsinore Hang Gliding Association as of yesterday. 
 
           10              I just want to reiterate that sites are 
 
           11   rare.  And you guys have a chance here to bring 
 
           12   something back that we have lost.  And if we can 
 
           13   contend that we don't cause much use and you guys can 
 
           14   find that's true, I would wholeheartedly stand by your 
 
           15   decision to give us back a site that's gone.  Once 
 
           16   they are gone, they are gone, and I can't go hang 
 
           17   glide in my backyard. 
 
           18              Another point.  Our use is minimal.  We are 
 
           19   not like hikers or mountain bikers chewing up trails 
 
           20   all the time.  This site probably gets flown on an 
 
           21   average, couple times a weekend.  I mean, not even 
 
           22   that.  You have the weekdays, everybody is working. 
 
           23   You come up here and the conditions are bad, you can't 
 
           24   fly.  It's not that big of a deal. 
 
           25              You won't have a Disneyland line of hang 
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            1   gliders up there on launch.  It's not going to happen 
 
            2   at this site.  The only reason for all these hang 
 
            3   glider people to come here today is site preservation. 
 
            4   You won't have to deal with them every time in the 
 
            5   planning process.  We can get that down to a few 
 
            6   people.  But in general, you can see everybody has the 
 
            7   same concerns. 
 
            8              You took the wind out of all my other 
 
            9   points, you guys, by making this working group, and I 
 
           10   thank you very much. 
 
           11              I did get a letter from the president of 
 
           12   the San Francisco Hang Gliding Association, so I would 
 
           13   like to drop that off.  So thank you very much. 
 
           14                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thanks Michael. 
 
           15              Ken Howells. 
 
           16                 MR. HOWELLS:  Ken Howells, San 
 
           17   Bernardino, California. 
 
           18              We will skip over a lot of topics that have 
 
           19   already been covered.  In twenty years of hang 
 
           20   gliding, I have flown over bears and deers and 
 
           21   mountain lions and other large creatures.  They don't 
 
           22   even notice that we are there, as much as we try. 
 
           23              The other point is that many pilots travel 
 
           24   to Southern California from Arizona and points east to 
 
           25   fly their hang gliders, traveling on I-10 right past 
                                                                     49 
 
                    GILLESPIE REPORTING & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT, INC. 



            1   desert communities.  Many of them take the opportunity 
 
            2   to fly from the Santa Rosas and spend some of their 
 
            3   vacation dollars in the community, before going on to 
 
            4   spend those dollars in other areas.  On a personal 
 
            5   note, I have family in La Quinta and elsewhere nearby. 
 
            6   They would appreciate if I could fly here because I 
 
            7   would visit more often. 
 
            8              Thank you. 
 
            9                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thanks.  That's all I 
 
           10   have signed up.  So I want to thank you all for coming 
 
           11   out.  It's important for this committee to hear from 
 
           12   the public.  This is the largest turnout I believe we 
 
           13   have had.  I appreciate you taking your time out to 
 
           14   come out today.  We have addressed your concerns with 
 
           15   the working group and probably will be in touch with a 
 
           16   few select people in the room to help this working 
 
           17   group get to a final recommendation. 
 
           18              So thank you very much.  We will reopen the 
 
           19   public hearing part of the meeting at 11 o'clock if 
 
           20   you have anything else you want to talk about.  And 
 
           21   with that, I will close the public hearing.  And we 
 
           22   will go back and resume on the agenda where we left 
 
           23   off.  Public comments. 
 
           24             (Applause from the audience.) 
 
           25              Next thing on the agenda is review and 
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            1   approval of minutes.  I'd certainly entertain a motion 
 
            2   to receive and file. 
 
            3                 MS. HENDERSON:  Move to receive and 
 
            4   file. 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Moved and seconded. 
 
            6   All in favor, aye; any opposed?  Received and filed. 
 
            7              Next item is our designated federal 
 
            8   official, Danella George, on old business/new 
 
            9   business. 
 
           10                 MS. GEORGE:  Old business/new business. 
 
           11   We started this discussion this morning a little bit 
 
           12   about the current appointment process, where we are 
 
           13   with the five, so we have covered that.  What we would 
 
           14   like to do is initiate the next five to get that 
 
           15   process moving, because they will expire November of 
 
           16   this year. 
 
           17              And those folks are from Cathedral City, 
 
           18   Indian Wells, Coachella Valley, Mountains Conservancy, 
 
           19   the Winter Park Authority, and the County of 
 
           20   Riverside.  So a Federal Register Notice has already 
 
           21   been posted. 
 
           22                 And there will be announcements.  And 
 
           23   Frank has got packets for those folks that represent 
 
           24   those jurisdictions and those places today to hand 
 
           25   out. 
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            1              We also have a follow-up item on the Pinyon 
 
            2   Pines Community Council position.  And Heidi, who was 
 
            3   on the list for appointment, has taken a position with 
 
            4   the Forest Service, a temporary -- permanent? 
 
            5                 MS. SELLER:  Four-year term position. 
 
            6                 MS. GEORGE:  And she is withdrawing her 
 
            7   name from consideration.  It was felt that that would 
 
            8   be best.  So the bad news is we won't have Heidi on 
 
            9   the Advisory Committee, but the good news is she is 
 
           10   getting a job doing wildlife for the Forest Service. 
 
           11   And Frank will attend the Pinyon Pines Community 
 
           12   Council meeting on Valentine's, is it -- 
 
           13                 MR. MOWRY:  Yes. 
 
           14                 MS. GEORGE: -- to talk about some 
 
           15   opportunities, the process to move this forward 
 
           16   because there are two routes we can go:  One, Pinyon 
 
           17   Pines Community Council could make a recommendation -- 
 
           18                 MS. WATLING:  Pinyon Community Council, 
 
           19   not Pinyon Pines. 
 
           20                 MS. GEORGE:  I stand corrected.  Pinyon 
 
           21   Community Council could make a recommendation on 
 
           22   Monday.  And we could try and fast-track that back to 
 
           23   the four names that are sitting somewhere in the White 
 
           24   House or something.  Or plan B is to add Pinyon 
 
           25   Community Council in the next go-around of the five we 
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            1   just suggested.  So there are two routes to go to get 
 
            2   an appointment to that slot.  Okay. 
 
            3              The only other old news/new news, just to 
 
            4   share with folks, is the BLM had a National Landscape 
 
            5   Conservation System Workshop which Monuments fit 
 
            6   under.  It was in Bakersfield.  Jim Foote and I both 
 
            7   attended.  It was in mid-January.  Recreation issues 
 
            8   were also covered.  It was a pretty interesting 
 
            9   workshop.  We saw Tim Smith, because they celebrated 
 
           10   Tim going off to be a field manager, if you will, in 
 
           11   Arizona.  I guess he has already started. 
 
           12              We also had a workshop care of -- not 
 
           13   workshop but a visitation, care of Jeff Morgan with 
 
           14   the NLCS. 
 
           15                 MR. MORGAN:  With Congressional staff 
 
           16   and staff members, House and Senate staff members, it 
 
           17   was a total of, I think, 20 people:  12 staff members, 
 
           18   couple of Sierra Club employees, couple of Wildlife 
 
           19   Federation employees, and a couple from the National 
 
           20   Society for Historic Places.  And they had a very wet 
 
           21   weekend, but they also had a very informative weekend. 
 
           22              They all enjoyed it, and hopefully they 
 
           23   went back to Washington and they will increase the 
 
           24   budget for the NLCS and also our National Monument. 
 
           25   That was the plan. 
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            1              I will be following up with this in June 
 
            2   when I go to Washington for a week to talk to these 
 
            3   people again. 
 
            4                 MS. GEORGE:  Other old/new business. 
 
            5   Just briefly, the signage work group.  Jim Foote, 
 
            6   where are you, Jim?  Maybe he is out -- he out there. 
 
            7   Jim keeps calling meetings.  And I think John Ladely 
 
            8   is one of the few people that comes to the meetings. 
 
            9   So Jim has an idea to share with the group if we have 
 
           10   time today, or else we will get it out by e-mail, of 
 
           11   how to get this moving along, the work group that Jim 
 
           12   has a great idea on. 
 
           13              The other little item to update folks, 
 
           14   since you all were involved on the business plan, is 
 
           15   all the work groups on the business plan, we are at a 
 
           16   stage right now where Frank and I have presented that 
 
           17   to Laurie and Gail for prioritization, for the line 
 
           18   officers to prioritize projects.  And when that gets 
 
           19   done, we will have some sort of draft document back 
 
           20   out to the work groups to look at. 
 
           21              And our goal is to get that completed by 
 
           22   the end of the fiscal year.  It is a priority for BLM, 
 
           23   those business plans, NLCS, and a California strategic 
 
           24   priority, too, for the BLM. 
 
           25              I think that's about it for updates, you 
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            1   guys, that I can think of.  Yes.  Except I am going to 
 
            2   route around a mail list.  Our current contact list is 
 
            3   very outdated.  So Frank has put together a nice 
 
            4   contact list.  And if you would take the time to make 
 
            5   sure the information is correct; if not, you can 
 
            6   just -- in the box below your name, put in the correct 
 
            7   information, we would appreciate that. 
 
            8                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Mary. 
 
            9                 MS. ROCHE:  Question:  Follow-up on the 
 
           10   reappointments.  The reappointments have to fill out 
 
           11   all of these forms the same as a new nominee? 
 
           12                 MS. GEORGE:  Correct.  I tried about a 
 
           13   year and a half ago to see if we could use one form, 
 
           14   user-friendly, one-stop shopping.  And the two 
 
           15   departments were not willing to do that.  We still had 
 
           16   to go with a form for USDA, and a form for the 
 
           17   Department of Interior because they are the FACA 
 
           18   Advisory Committees and -- 
 
           19                 MS. ROCHE:  But even if we served on it, 
 
           20   we still have to go through the same thing-a-ma-gig? 
 
           21                 MS. GEORGE:  Maybe we can get an old 
 
           22   form. 
 
           23                 MR. MOWRY:  Anybody who is going to do a 
 
           24   straight reappointment, contact me.  We may have your 
 
           25   old forms on file.  And then all we would need is a 
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            1   new signature with a new date.  So I can work on that 
 
            2   for you. 
 
            3                 MS. ROCHE:  Right. 
 
            4                 MS. HENDERSON:  Mary, it's probably of 
 
            5   note that anybody in your community can apply.  So 
 
            6   it's like -- it's not really -- it's a reappointment 
 
            7   if you are reappointed, but it's an open position.  So 
 
            8   you are kind of applying like everybody else. 
 
            9                 MS. ROCHE:  All right.  In our 
 
           10   communities, is this something that we normally do is 
 
           11   go out and let the community know that the -- this 
 
           12   position is up for nominations? 
 
           13                 MS. HENDERSON:  It's my understanding 
 
           14   that the representative from the city does not have to 
 
           15   be the elected person. 
 
           16                 MS. ROCHE:  No, I know it does not have 
 
           17   to be.  That's not my point. 
 
           18                 MS. HENDERSON:  It can be anybody in the 
 
           19   city. 
 
           20                 MS. ROCHE:  The point is, is it 
 
           21   something that you should publicly put out, the 
 
           22   request for nominations? 
 
           23                 MS. GEORGE:  We do a press release. 
 
           24   That goes out on -- far and wide.  We also have it on 
 
           25   the Web site. 
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            1                 MR. MOWRY:  Basically -- I'm with BLM. 
 
            2   Basically what happens is we do a Federal Register 
 
            3   Notice which advises the world that we are seeking 
 
            4   nominations for the five open positions.  Once that 
 
            5   notice is published, we will do a press release, 
 
            6   immediate advisory that will go to all the local media 
 
            7   so they are aware of the fact that these nominations 
 
            8   are open. 
 
            9              The public can contact us if they want to 
 
           10   apply, and we will get the nominations.  Otherwise, if 
 
           11   anybody wants to get reappointed, you can certainly 
 
           12   fill out the form and submit that also.  And then the 
 
           13   forms will be reviewed and the decisions will be made 
 
           14   by BLM and the Forest Service.  Any questions on that? 
 
           15                 MS. ROCHE:  No.  Thank you. 
 
           16                 MS. GEORGE:  I do have one other item 
 
           17   just to add.  Recently, Mary, you saw in the paper the 
 
           18   Desert Advisory Committee, the DAC, which represents 
 
           19   the whole California Desert District, BLM, a lot of 
 
           20   news releases a couple of time.  And they are calling 
 
           21   for resumes, if you are interested fitting in specific 
 
           22   areas.  So I guess the bottom line is we will handle 
 
           23   the press release.  You all don't need to worry about 
 
           24   it.  If you want to mention it at City Council, that's 
 
           25   your choice.  If you want me to come and talk at City 
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            1   Council, more than happy to, whatever you need. 
 
            2                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Don't forget to let the 
 
            3   hang gliders know, Frank. 
 
            4              Barbara? 
 
            5                 MS. GONZALES-LYONS:  Like us at our 
 
            6   Council meeting, we made an announcement to the 
 
            7   membership to say that this is open again.  Anybody 
 
            8   who wants to put in their name has to put it in by a 
 
            9   certain date.  And we will accept those, and whatever 
 
           10   the Council makes the decision on, the Council made a 
 
           11   decision on.  I think the City Councils do the same 
 
           12   thing. 
 
           13                 MS. HENDERSON:  No, we don't.  It goes 
 
           14   right into the agency. 
 
           15                 MS. ROCHE:  What about the agencies that 
 
           16   are up?  How do they handle it?  How does the County 
 
           17   of Riverside, the Coachella Valley, Mountain 
 
           18   Conservancy, is this the same process where you 
 
           19   publicly make the notification? 
 
           20                 MR. MOWRY:  It would be the same process 
 
           21   for them.  The one thing to note in the packages that 
 
           22   I gave to the five who were going to be coming up for 
 
           23   renomination in November, I don't have a deadline date 
 
           24   in there yet because this is all going to be based on 
 
           25   when the notice is actually published in the Federal 
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            1   Register.  Once that's done, we have 60 days in which 
 
            2   to accept nominations. 
 
            3              But that probably won't be for another 
 
            4   week, two weeks, before it gets published.  And I will 
 
            5   inform everybody of the final deadline when that comes 
 
            6   through and give them information about the Federal 
 
            7   Register notice, as well. 
 
            8                 MS. GEORGE:  In the legislation, it's 
 
            9   right there in the law how it talks about this MAC, 
 
           10   Monument Advisory Committee, and then we have to 
 
           11   balance that with FACA, Federal Advisory Committee 
 
           12   Act. 
 
           13                 MS. HENDERSON:  I think that other 
 
           14   agencies have to have a member of their agency. 
 
           15                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  In our case, because we 
 
           16   represent Parks and Fish and Game, when my term was 
 
           17   up, I contacted my counterpart at Fish and Game and 
 
           18   said, "Would you like to have a term on this 
 
           19   committee?" 
 
           20              I said, "It's your term, Kirk.  You can 
 
           21   have it."  And I said, "Probably for continuity 
 
           22   purposes, it would make sense, and I'm willing to sit 
 
           23   on it again." 
 
           24              And he said, "Yeah, continue on, as long as 
 
           25   Eddie was maintaining contact."  So we are pretty 
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            1   narrow.  I don't think there are a lot of us that can 
 
            2   come here and sit. 
 
            3              Okay.  Anything else on reappointments? 
 
            4   Coach Crites has given me wise advice to correct 
 
            5   myself.  I referred previously to public hearing, and 
 
            6   I should have said public comments.  So let the record 
 
            7   reflect that.  I apologize for my misstatement. 
 
            8              Continuing on with updates, when Jim Foote 
 
            9   lands from his hang gliding trip, we will go back to 
 
           10   him to update on signage. 
 
           11              Next up on the agenda is Gail with BLM 
 
           12   updates. 
 
           13                 MS. ACHESON:  Well, other than Monument 
 
           14   issues, we are very busy in our office.  And some of 
 
           15   the major things we are working on this year, we have 
 
           16   initiated an amendment to our South Coast Resource 
 
           17   Management Plan.  We have had significant changes 
 
           18   since it was signed in 1994.  We have got the San 
 
           19   Diego MSCP '97.  We have acquired about 5,000 acres of 
 
           20   land as part of that MSCP. 
 
           21              We have not finished our OHV Road and Trail 
 
           22   Designations, so there are a number of issues we need 
 
           23   to address down there. 
 
           24              And we also have Otay Mountain Wilderness 
 
           25   Act, which designated 18,500 acres of wilderness.  So 
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            1   a number of issues in San Diego.  We are starting that 
 
            2   process this year. 
 
            3              We have got a number -- well, many energy 
 
            4   right-of-way projects going on.  And I'm just going to 
 
            5   touch on some of them that are major.  Desert 
 
            6   Southwest 500 KV transmission line, the Imperial 
 
            7   Irrigation District, and it will be along the I-10 
 
            8   corridor. 
 
            9              The wind energy lease process we went 
 
           10   through on Section 28, which is just north of Palm 
 
           11   Springs proper, came to conclusion after many, many 
 
           12   months.  And a successful bidder was Sea West 
 
           13   Corporation with a bid of $226,500.  I might mention 
 
           14   that that was a process that had not been used with 
 
           15   BLM before, so we were the first in line.  And we were 
 
           16   glad that it came to conclusion.  I think if we had to 
 
           17   do it again, we'd probably do it a different way.  It 
 
           18   was a competitive process, I think. 
 
           19              We have the Deevers Palo Verde 500 KV 
 
           20   transmission line, and the proponent there is Southern 
 
           21   California Edison.  And that's going to go from San 
 
           22   Bernardino to Phoenix, again, along the I-10 corridor. 
 
           23   So energy is a big push, of course. 
 
           24              We have the Blythe Energy 230 KV 
 
           25   transmission line.  And of course, it's light energy. 
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            1   And it's going to Blythe.  Blythe is the area between 
 
            2   Desert Center and (inaudible) again, along I-1040.  So 
 
            3   we are really busy with our land programs. And there 
 
            4   are many, many more, too numerous to mention. 
 
            5              A couple of other things I wanted to 
 
            6   mention is that December 30th, we had a District Court 
 
            7   Order closing our wash zones to OHV use within our two 
 
            8   Designated Wildlife Management Areas or DWMAs.  They 
 
            9   are part of our Northern and Eastern Colorado Plan 
 
           10   that was completed a couple years ago. 
 
           11              For us in the Palm Springs area, it does 
 
           12   affect the Chuckawalla Bench, about 352,000 acres. 
 
           13   And the reason for issuing the Order was that last 
 
           14   summer, they overturned the Fish and Wildlife Services 
 
           15   biological opinion and asked them to come up with a 
 
           16   new opinion.  So they have injunctive relief to close 
 
           17   those open washes until that biological opinion is 
 
           18   reissued by the Service.  They are working on that 
 
           19   now.  It should be completed by the end of February, 
 
           20   and then we will look to see what that says and how 
 
           21   that will affect the closures. 
 
           22              I just wanted to say, though, that it does 
 
           23   not affect any open route designations.  And of those 
 
           24   there are 4,700 miles of roads.  And 1,700 of those 
 
           25   are located within these two desert wildlife 
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            1   management areas.  So those are all still open.  So 
 
            2   it's just the wash zone.  In the plan, some zones were 
 
            3   open.  Some washes were open, and some were closed. 
 
            4   It's the ones that were open that are now closed until 
 
            5   we get a new biological opinion. 
 
            6              The only other thing I wanted to mention is 
 
            7   that the Coachella Valley Water District and Imperial 
 
            8   Irrigation District have issued a contract and begun 
 
            9   canal lining construction on the Coachella Canal.  I'm 
 
           10   sure you may be aware of that.  And just to let you 
 
           11   know, access to the Bradshaw Trail is closed until 
 
           12   they finish the construction.  So for the west side, 
 
           13   due to canal construction, for anybody that was going 
 
           14   to go, the canal road itself is closed, but access to 
 
           15   the Bradshaw Trail is closed. 
 
           16                 MR. CRITES:  For how long? 
 
           17                 MS. ACHESON:  Until they finish the 
 
           18   construction.  I don't know the date. 
 
           19                 MR. MORGAN:  So they are going to reopen 
 
           20   access?  Can you get to Dos Palmas? 
 
           21                 MR. HAVERT:  We would assume so. 
 
           22   Wouldn't think that would be affected. 
 
           23                 MS. GEORGE:  It's on the other side. 
 
           24                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Try to speak one at a 
 
           25   time for our reporter here.  She is having trouble. 
                                                                     63 
 
                    GILLESPIE REPORTING & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT, INC. 



            1   And make sure you speak up because it's hard to hear 
 
            2   when you are speaking across the room.  Try to speak 
 
            3   to her if you can.  Thank you.  Frank. 
 
            4                 MR. BOGERT:  Where is Section 28?  Is 
 
            5   that the one by Snow Creek, where they were going to 
 
            6   put in windmills? 
 
            7                 MS. ACHESON:  It's just north of Palm 
 
            8   Springs proper.  I haven't been out there myself, I 
 
            9   will tell you, but it's just north -- it's off of 
 
           10   Indian Avenue.  It's in the wind farm area.  It's 
 
           11   already been developed, but the lease was terminated. 
 
           12   And so we reissued the lease under competitive bid 
 
           13   process. 
 
           14                 MR. BOGERT:  Thank you. 
 
           15                 MS. ACHESON:  I think it's about 230 or 
 
           16   so acres of that section. 
 
           17                 MS. GEORGE:  It's not the one going up 
 
           18   the hill, Frank.  It's not going up into the Monument. 
 
           19   It's on the flats. 
 
           20                 MR. MORGAN:  It's out of the Monument. 
 
           21                 MS. GEORGE:  Correct. 
 
           22                 MS. ACHESON:  Any questions?  Jim -- 
 
           23   maybe we could just ask Jim to clarify any questions 
 
           24   about the closure of the -- or access to the Bradshaw 
 
           25   Trail.  There was a question about can you still get 
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            1   to Dos Palmas, and that's not affected and that's 
 
            2   because of Coachella Valley. 
 
            3                 MR. FOOTE:  I have to apologize.  I'm 
 
            4   not up to speed on this, really.  All I understand is 
 
            5   that in their relining operation, that access to 
 
            6   Bradshaw Trail through the Dos Palmas area is not 
 
            7   allowed to the public.  So we are looking at alternate 
 
            8   ways to provide for that access, if that's even 
 
            9   possible.  We don't know that at this point in time. 
 
           10                 MS. ACHESON:  Is this just for the 
 
           11   duration of the construction? 
 
           12                 MR. FOOTE:  That's a good question.  It 
 
           13   may be in perpetuity.  Certainly people have been 
 
           14   using the canal road over the years to access various 
 
           15   parcels of land out there, just for general access. 
 
           16   And that's never been authorized.  The Water District 
 
           17   has just allowed that to occur.  This canal lining 
 
           18   project may lead to more of an act on the Water 
 
           19   District's part to prohibit that.  And they may be 
 
           20   gating that.  They may be keeping people actively off 
 
           21   that canal from here on out. 
 
           22                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Buford. 
 
           23                 MR. CRITES:  May I assume that BLM is 
 
           24   going to hot-foot it, so to speak, into issues about 
 
           25   that and do your best to make sure that they don't -- 
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            1   without their access, you can't get to a lot of those 
 
            2   places. 
 
            3                 MR. FOOTE:  Some of the access goes 
 
            4   through the inverted siphons or the drops and some of 
 
            5   them will remain open. 
 
            6                 MR. CRITES:  But you can't get to those 
 
            7   without the canal road. 
 
            8                 MR. FOOTE:  And that's the issue we need 
 
            9   to investigate. 
 
           10                 MR. CRITES:  Is BLM after the water 
 
           11   district to make sure they don't screw that up? 
 
           12                 MS. ACHESON:  We are a part of the group 
 
           13   that is working with them to make sure that our 
 
           14   interests are preserved.  Elena is part of that work. 
 
           15                 MR. CRITES:  The only reason I mention 
 
           16   it -- because it's not any different than the hang 
 
           17   gliders.  Once they gate it, once they are done, 
 
           18   access is over, and we will all look at each other and 
 
           19   go "hum." 
 
           20                 MS. ACHESON:  The road is their road and 
 
           21   it never was authorized officially.  So we have 
 
           22   limited -- we can work with them and try to make it. 
 
           23                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Bary. 
 
           24                 MR. FREET:  Yes.  I'm going to have to 
 
           25   leave in just a few minutes, and I have a question of 
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            1   Gail. 
 
            2              At the last MAC meeting I asked for an 
 
            3   update on budget and staffing for the Monument, 
 
            4   specifically. 
 
            5                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  That's on the agenda. 
 
            6                 MR. FREET:  That's my question.  Where 
 
            7   is it on the agenda? 
 
            8                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  The next one. 
 
            9                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  When do you have to 
 
           10   leave, Bary? 
 
           11                 MR. FREET:  Like now. 
 
           12                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Gail, do you have 
 
           13   anything else? 
 
           14                 MS. ACHESON:  Not on the update, no, but 
 
           15   I can go ahead with the inter-agency cooperation. 
 
           16                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Laurie, would you like 
 
           17   to go after the inter-agency cooperation? 
 
           18                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  Certainly. 
 
           19                 MR. CRITES:  As part of the 
 
           20   cooperation -- 
 
           21                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  We will jump right into 
 
           22   the inter-agency cooperation. 
 
           23                 MS. ACHESON:  I don't have specifics for 
 
           24   you on budget and staffing levels.  But I can tell you 
 
           25   I didn't realize that that was a question from the 
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            1   last MAC meeting, if you wanted specifics on that. 
 
            2   But I can tell you as far as inter-agency cooperation 
 
            3   goes, since I have been here in June and met Laurie, I 
 
            4   think we have a very good working relationship.  We 
 
            5   had several work sessions together with Danella and 
 
            6   staff, and we have looked at budget, common management 
 
            7   goals, staffing levels, things that we want to come 
 
            8   together on to make sure that we are trying to provide 
 
            9   seamless management with the Monument. 
 
           10              And she is a pleasure to work with, I have 
 
           11   to say that.  Not only have we had two work sessions, 
 
           12   we have had follow-up and that includes the Forest 
 
           13   supervisors and Linda Hansen, our district manager. 
 
           14   We had to cut it short last time, but we have another 
 
           15   one coming up this month and another board of 
 
           16   directors' meeting in early March. 
 
           17              So that's what we are working on is budget 
 
           18   processes, how we intermingle those.  So we are 
 
           19   working to make sure our priorities are the same and 
 
           20   also the staffing levels from both the agencies.  So 
 
           21   it's not a specific answer, if that's what you were 
 
           22   looking for. 
 
           23                 MR. FREET:  I would like to file that 
 
           24   I'm dissatisfied that I didn't get the information I 
 
           25   asked for.  Thank you. 
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            1                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  Yeah, and I want to 
 
            2   reflect, to me the Monument Foundation is joint 
 
            3   partnership and joint stewardship of the land.  And I 
 
            4   don't just mean the two agencies; I mean the 
 
            5   collective.  And I think that is the biggest strength 
 
            6   of the Monument, as well. 
 
            7              And I admit that sometimes with the two 
 
            8   agencies, we have such similar missions, and yet our 
 
            9   procedures to get to the same place are like that 
 
           10   (demonstrating).  So that can be frustrating at times, 
 
           11   but when I look at that as the negative versus the 
 
           12   positive of the two agencies working together, the 
 
           13   positives greatly outweigh the negatives. 
 
           14              Aside from all the things that Gail just 
 
           15   brought up as far as how we are coordinating on budget 
 
           16   and that sort of thing, I also want to say that one of 
 
           17   the great advantages of the two agencies together is 
 
           18   that we have doubled our human resources.  I mean, to 
 
           19   me we are a big family working on joint stewardship. 
 
           20              I have lots of examples, but the one 
 
           21   example that comes to mind is the fire storm of 
 
           22   October in 2004, where we had all those fires going on 
 
           23   in the San Bernardino Mountains.  And we had very 
 
           24   little protection over in this area, and yet we had 
 
           25   arsonists running amuck. 
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            1              And BLM came over with all their law 
 
            2   enforcement and helped us out to patrol.  And also 
 
            3   Danella stepped up to the plate and helped us get all 
 
            4   kinds of staffing, like for our joint information 
 
            5   center and resource specialists.  That's just one of 
 
            6   many examples of how we have expanded capacity.  So 
 
            7   I'm very grateful the two agencies were working so 
 
            8   closely together. 
 
            9              And then lastly, I want to also say that 
 
           10   Gail has been such a welcome addition, and we want to 
 
           11   do everything to keep her here because she shares that 
 
           12   same value of synergy, in my opinion, and joint 
 
           13   stewardship. 
 
           14              So anyway, those are some general things of 
 
           15   how I feel.  And I know that our supervisor and our 
 
           16   other staff share our very positive feelings about the 
 
           17   two agencies working together. 
 
           18                 MS. ACHESON:  May I add one thing, 
 
           19   because we didn't have a specific response to what you 
 
           20   asked for.  I would suggest that probably by the next 
 
           21   MAC meeting, we should have some products where we 
 
           22   have come together on.  And I would like to find out 
 
           23   specifically what you are looking for and make sure we 
 
           24   provide that at the next meeting. 
 
           25                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Anything else as far as 
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            1   joint cooperation?  Terry Henderson. 
 
            2                 MS. HENDERSON:  Terry Henderson, La 
 
            3   Quinta. 
 
            4              Perhaps within the body of the minutes, 
 
            5   Bary -- I don't know if you had an opportunity to 
 
            6   review them, but maybe your specifics were in the 
 
            7   minutes from the last meeting, and we can just pull 
 
            8   from that, but I'm not sure they are here. 
 
            9                 MR. FREET:  I believe they are not. 
 
           10   Having attended the meeting, I don't think they were 
 
           11   there. 
 
           12                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Laurie, anything to add 
 
           13   on behalf of the agency? 
 
           14                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  Sure.  Weather has been 
 
           15   a major event in the last month, as it has been down 
 
           16   here in the valley, as well.  In early January, we had 
 
           17   a foot of snow, followed by about two feet of rain in 
 
           18   a very short time. 
 
           19              The first thing that happened was a huge 
 
           20   boulder fell down off the ridge on Highway 243 and 
 
           21   blocked Highway 243 for about a week and a half.  And 
 
           22   around that time also the snow level went up to about 
 
           23   7,000 feet, which affected most of our roads on the 
 
           24   district.  And as you know, most of the roads are dirt 
 
           25   roads.  And we have a situation now where most of our 
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            1   roads have severe damage.  And John Ladely has been 
 
            2   coordinating.  We have inventoried all our roads to 
 
            3   try to assist in some additional funding or special 
 
            4   funding for this sort of thing.  But we have ruts 
 
            5   seven or eight feet.  I mean, you should see some of 
 
            6   the pictures.  It's really a poster child for roads 
 
            7   right now. 
 
            8              And then last Wednesday, we had another 
 
            9   event, a windstorm, which meant -- many of you have 
 
           10   probably seen on television -- winds up to 60 miles an 
 
           11   hour.  I thought it was 30 homes, but it looks like at 
 
           12   least 37 homes have been damaged, some severely.  You 
 
           13   may have seen trees have fallen, splitting homes in 
 
           14   half and power lines everywhere down.  So we have had 
 
           15   a lot of distractions on the district that were not 
 
           16   part of our program of work, but you have to roll with 
 
           17   the punches. 
 
           18              We have also had in various levels about 20 
 
           19   community protection fuel reduction projects.  Some 
 
           20   are finished.  Some are in the middle.  Some are in 
 
           21   the very early stages of development.  But we have 
 
           22   just, as I have always said at all our briefings, this 
 
           23   is our number one priority is community protection as 
 
           24   far as health with the situation we have up there. 
 
           25              But also our land management plan, many of 
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            1   you have been involved in the revision of this.  There 
 
            2   were numerous public meetings.  And I am happy to say 
 
            3   that it probably will be out in September.  And this 
 
            4   month, we are putting the final touches on it.  As I 
 
            5   have said, we divided the National Forest up into 
 
            6   places, because a place is somewhere that everybody 
 
            7   can relate to.  And one of the four places on the 
 
            8   district is the Monument Place.  So a lot of you have 
 
            9   been quite involved with that. 
 
           10              Within the places, we have emphasis areas. 
 
           11   And we met as a Forest, and we have some people that 
 
           12   have been around for 25, 30 years that really know the 
 
           13   forest intimately.  And we all got together, and we 
 
           14   looked where the best emphasis was for different 
 
           15   areas, taking in all the public comments, as well, 
 
           16   such as a wilderness area, a back country motorized, a 
 
           17   back country nonmotorized, those sorts of things. 
 
           18              And since -- the other thing is that, 
 
           19   lastly, Buford, when I talked to him last week, asked 
 
           20   me to talk a little bit about the fact that we had 
 
           21   eliminated the Adventure Pass and the implications of 
 
           22   that for the Monument.  And this is going to be really 
 
           23   brief, but since John Ladely is here, since he is our 
 
           24   recreation staff officer, he is here to listen and 
 
           25   participate in the branding part of the discussion 
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            1   since he is on the signs committee.  I thought that 
 
            2   maybe John could talk a little bit about the 
 
            3   implications of taking out the Adventure Pass. 
 
            4                 MR. LADELY:  John Ladely, recreation 
 
            5   officer. 
 
            6              I just wanted to touch real briefly about 
 
            7   Adventure Pass and the implications on the Monument. 
 
            8   My comments are going to be restricted to the Forest 
 
            9   Service Management portion of the Monument.  But what 
 
           10   I wanted to cover initially is what Adventure Pass 
 
           11   provides us as a forest generally, or how I utilize 
 
           12   Adventure Pass funds on the district. 
 
           13              In a real quick nutshell, it provides me 
 
           14   field rangers and staff to work in the recreation 
 
           15   sites and to help me manage the recreation program on 
 
           16   the district.  It does provide a couple vehicles for 
 
           17   the same.  And I also utilize Adventure Pass receipts 
 
           18   for materials and equipment to take care of the 
 
           19   various sites in the district. 
 
           20              Adventure Pass regulations state that 
 
           21   Adventure Pass funds are to be utilized where 
 
           22   collected.  Essentially what this means is we take the 
 
           23   receipts from Adventure Pass and reinvest them in the 
 
           24   collection area.  The other side of that means, not 
 
           25   outside of it. 
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            1              So the challenge for me is now that the 
 
            2   Monument portion that the Forest Service manages is an 
 
            3   Adventure Pass-free area, if I follow regulations, I 
 
            4   cannot use Adventure Pass receipts within the Monument 
 
            5   area.  The other side of that on this fiscal year, 
 
            6   because our district now has a substantial percentage 
 
            7   of it that is Adventure Pass-free area, my Adventure 
 
            8   Pass discretionary fund has been reduced by 30 percent 
 
            9   this year.  For me, that's a substantial impact. 
 
           10              The inverse to that is that the general 
 
           11   funding that we receive for recreation has not been 
 
           12   increased to make up that difference.  So for me, 
 
           13   that's a challenge.  So I'm going to share some of 
 
           14   this challenge with you all. 
 
           15              Some of the things that we take care of in 
 
           16   the Monument, and in the past I have utilized 
 
           17   Adventure Pass and our rangers to take care of that, 
 
           18   is 10 yellow post sites, the maintenance and cleanup 
 
           19   of them, which we try to do during season weekly.  The 
 
           20   yellow post sites are designated dispersed camp units. 
 
           21   We provide a fire grill, picnic tables, and a cleared 
 
           22   area that's relatively fire safe. 
 
           23              Monthly water samples at Santa Rosa 
 
           24   Springs; the maintenance and repair of the Santa Rosa 
 
           25   toilet, which right now does need substantial repairs. 
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            1   Three to four times a week we try to clean the quay at 
 
            2   Tewanet Scenic Pool out and Interpretive Trail.  And 
 
            3   also graffiti removal, which is real common there. 
 
            4   Just general roadside in the area cleanup, trash, 
 
            5   litter, sometimes graffiti on the boulders.  A bit of 
 
            6   area patrol and trail maintenance. 
 
            7              So that's some of the things that in the 
 
            8   past we have utilized Adventure Pass receipts in the 
 
            9   Monument to take care of.  As it stands now, I don't 
 
           10   really have a funding mechanism to take care of those 
 
           11   paths.  So to me, that's a challenge as a manager. 
 
           12              What we are looking towards is trying to 
 
           13   form partnerships that will assist us with that, and 
 
           14   also seeking other funding sources, so just wanted to 
 
           15   share with you where we are on that.  But currently 
 
           16   it's challenging.  Thanks. 
 
           17                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Terry Henderson. 
 
           18                 MS. HENDERSON:  What is that particular 
 
           19   dollar figure? 
 
           20                 MR. LADELY:  Total?  Which dollar 
 
           21   figure? 
 
           22                 MS. HENDERSON:  The one that you don't 
 
           23   have anymore. 
 
           24                 MR. LADELY:  My discretionary funds on 
 
           25   an annual basis are generally about $50,000.  It was 
                                                                     76 
 
                    GILLESPIE REPORTING & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT, INC. 



            1   reduced by $15,000. 
 
            2                 MS. HENDERSON:  Okay, thank you. 
 
            3                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Buford. 
 
            4                 MR. CRITES:  That 15 were all monies 
 
            5   that were generated within the Monument by Adventure 
 
            6   Pass? 
 
            7                 MR. LADELY:  No, that was based on a 
 
            8   percentage.  Realistically, the Monument doesn't 
 
            9   generate Adventure Pass receipts, so the percentage 
 
           10   that was reduced was disproportional. 
 
           11                 MR. CRITES:  Is that a way of saying 
 
           12   that what you spent in the Monument was more than what 
 
           13   you got? 
 
           14                 MR. LADELY:  Correct. 
 
           15                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  John, the restriction 
 
           16   that does not allow to you to spend Adventure Pass in 
 
           17   the Monument now, is that part of the law?  Is that 
 
           18   part of the Forest Service regulation?  Is that Board 
 
           19   of Supervisors decision? 
 
           20                 MR. LADELY:  I believe that's part of 
 
           21   the law as it was written. 
 
           22                 MS. GEORGE:  Actually, it's part of the 
 
           23   Monument planning process where we dropped the 
 
           24   Adventure Pass, because Congresswoman Bono was pretty 
 
           25   anti-Adventure Pass, so that was dropped -- during the 
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            1   Monument planning process was to drop that Adventure 
 
            2   Pass on that, so we did it.  That's where we did it 
 
            3   was during our planning process.  It was one of the 
 
            4   decisions in the plan. 
 
            5              And a question, John.  How much money did 
 
            6   you get from Adventure Pass within the National 
 
            7   Monument?  How much were you getting? 
 
            8                 MR. LADELY:  I can't answer that 
 
            9   because -- we don't know when Adventure Pass funds are 
 
           10   collected, where they are actually collected, because 
 
           11   they are sold through retail outlets and they do cover 
 
           12   for us.  So the funding collected on the forest floor 
 
           13   is split up by forest and then by district. 
 
           14                 MS. GEORGE:  So it seems, though, what 
 
           15   your needs are that you did get from Adventure Pass 
 
           16   probably really needs to be focused when we are doing 
 
           17   the business plan on the recreation aspect for those 
 
           18   items of which you are going to need for funding? 
 
           19                 MR. LADELY:  Yeah. 
 
           20                 MS. GEORGE:  Okay. 
 
           21                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  It just seems crazy 
 
           22   that the forest is -- part of the Monument is in the 
 
           23   forest, and the forest is charging the Adventure Pass, 
 
           24   yet you can't spend it in that part of the forest not 
 
           25   covered by the Adventure Pass.  And I'm a government 
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            1   worker, too, and I feel for you. 
 
            2              Okay.  Buford. 
 
            3                 MR. CRITES:  I think we have heard it. 
 
            4   We all, okay.  But we need to think about what we 
 
            5   intend to do or recommend or what have you, because 
 
            6   what I am hearing is there is work to be done that 
 
            7   isn't going to get done this year having to do with 
 
            8   campsites, roads, trails, bathrooms 
 
            9                 MR. LADELY:  It will be substantially 
 
           10   reduced. 
 
           11                 MR. CRITES:  There is a bunch of stuff 
 
           12   that isn't going to happen.  So here we are as an 
 
           13   Advisory Committee.  The whole idea of the National 
 
           14   Monument was not to lower the quality of services. 
 
           15                 MS. HENDERSON:  I would agree, Buford, 
 
           16   but the reason that I didn't jump in with something 
 
           17   like that is because I thought I heard that coming 
 
           18   from Danella when she said "as we put our budget 
 
           19   together with our line item needs, that we would be 
 
           20   including those."  That's what I thought I heard. 
 
           21                 MS. GEORGE:  Theoretically, the business 
 
           22   plan is to be the tool.  And that's where we really 
 
           23   struggle to make this not just a BLM business plan, 
 
           24   but a forest service -- all the other entity business 
 
           25   plans to show the funding needs -- to show the funding 
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            1   needs to implement the Monument Plan.  That's what 
 
            2   this is.  And those that have worked through the work 
 
            3   groups, and that would be a tool for both the agency, 
 
            4   and we all know -- maybe we don't all know, but I 
 
            5   learned after going to Bakersfield and so did Frank, 
 
            6   and Gail knows it, and Laurie, I'm sure, knows it: 
 
            7   Funding is not going to be good for the next couple of 
 
            8   years.  We are going to be lucky to have the same base 
 
            9   dollars. 
 
           10              The same situation exists for the BLM for 
 
           11   any items that we wanted to do that were pretty 
 
           12   draconian.  We have rough times with budget in BLM and 
 
           13   Forest Service.  We know that.  We know it's not going 
 
           14   to get better over the next couple of years.  So the 
 
           15   business plan is one place to focus our priorities. 
 
           16   And it's also a place where we ask the nonprofits to 
 
           17   give us additional funding to do projects and to help 
 
           18   us. 
 
           19              And then at another time, another date, I 
 
           20   think it would be appropriate for Foote to talk, but 
 
           21   we learned about the new FLREA law of fees, of being 
 
           22   able to collect fees.  That once we do have a 
 
           23   recreation strategic plan or whatever the buzz word is 
 
           24   for it was, that was the next phase within our 
 
           25   Monument Plan of opportunities, places to experience 
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            1   things, what it's going to cost to do business, and 
 
            2   maybe we will collect fees.  I don't know.  Foote; 
 
            3   right? 
 
            4                 MR. FOOTE:  It's an option. 
 
            5                 MS. HENDERSON:  Because -- I am not 
 
            6   finished -- budgets are going to be tough everywhere 
 
            7   probably for the next couple of years, except probably 
 
            8   the Coachella Valley.  We are doing very well in the 
 
            9   Coachella Valley. 
 
           10              The problem as I see it, and I'm not sure 
 
           11   how to overcome it, is similar in reverse to Buford's 
 
           12   concern about the trail being closed or the road, once 
 
           13   it's closed and they finish their work and they go 
 
           14   away, suddenly the road is closed.  Once we step 
 
           15   forward with some funding level, in two years or three 
 
           16   years when the money is back, they are going to say 
 
           17   you guys did that very well without our money.  So 
 
           18   we're not going to come back into the picture.  So I 
 
           19   don't know how we overcome that philosophy or bridge 
 
           20   that problem. 
 
           21                 MR. HAVERT:  A partial answer to that is 
 
           22   how you present that.  If we are collectively 
 
           23   contributing to getting things done, we need to show 
 
           24   that as a partnership, as a leveraging opportunity, as 
 
           25   a way to attract dollars into the BLM and Forest 
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            1   Service budgets for the National Monument.  So we need 
 
            2   to put that positive spin on it. 
 
            3              In the meantime, the bottom line is we want 
 
            4   things to function in the Monument, so if there is 
 
            5   something we can do, whether it's via nonprofits, 
 
            6   local government, volunteers, all of those various 
 
            7   things, that would be well worth our while to take a 
 
            8   look at.  And I think in that vein, what would be 
 
            9   helpful for this group to have, given all of the 
 
           10   different agencies and interests that are represented 
 
           11   here, is a pretty specific list of what are our 
 
           12   shortfalls up there.  What are the real specific 
 
           13   things that need to be done? 
 
           14              And we are hearing in some areas it's road 
 
           15   maintenance and in some areas it's rest rooms.  But if 
 
           16   we could get that kind of information so we had a feel 
 
           17   for what the needs are and then see if we can match 
 
           18   any opportunities to find ways to meet some of those 
 
           19   things, it would be worth a lot. 
 
           20                 MS. GEORGE:  Would it help, Bill, then, 
 
           21   to take this business plan format, the format we have, 
 
           22   because that's taking the key actions from the 
 
           23   Monument Plan, the actions that we thought were 
 
           24   important to implement in this plan, and be able to 
 
           25   show the shortfalls.  Would that be a good tool for 
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            1   you?  Would that work to show what you are asking? 
 
            2                 MR. HAVERT:  I suppose so.  I mean, the 
 
            3   bottom line is all I am really asking for is give us a 
 
            4   list that says we need this, we need that, we need 
 
            5   this.  And however that dovetails into the business 
 
            6   plan format, fine, just get us a list.  I need some 
 
            7   sense of what the magnitude of that is. 
 
            8                 MR. LYMAN:  I have a concern as I hear 
 
            9   this.  In a year that you take a hit in government and 
 
           10   there is degradation of services, the next year that 
 
           11   degradation is deeper or the hit to that service is 
 
           12   deeper, because you are trying to catch up into that 
 
           13   next year.  And even if you get funding two, three, 
 
           14   four years out, the issue that arises is that funding 
 
           15   doesn't improve things.  And it may not even bring 
 
           16   that back to previous levels. 
 
           17              We need to address that in the business 
 
           18   plan for his funding and those type of issues.  If 
 
           19   there is a base level and you are below that, the next 
 
           20   year you are going to be below even the base level and 
 
           21   no matter what you do, you are not going to get caught 
 
           22   up.  And if we are saying we are trying to attract 
 
           23   people and do those kinds of things, there is an 
 
           24   inherent danger that there is not going to be enough 
 
           25   money to throw at it to get back to a certain level. 
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            1                 MR. CRITES:  When we put the Monument 
 
            2   Plan together, I think collectively, most, if not all 
 
            3   of us decided it was fairly foolish to have somebody 
 
            4   above 4,000 feet having to have a pass to drive down a 
 
            5   road.  And if you were below 4,000 feet, you didn't 
 
            6   have to have one.  And almost no one bought one 
 
            7   anyway, and the only thing you needed it for was to go 
 
            8   up Santa Rosa Mountain Road. 
 
            9              So I think we said, this thing ought to be 
 
           10   managed in one way, and it was not Adventure Pass.  I 
 
           11   don't know that we were as thoughtful, perhaps, as we 
 
           12   should have been in terms of the fact that, oops, we 
 
           13   are collecting $2 and we are getting $20 in return. 
 
           14   But here we are.  I agree with Bill.  We need a 
 
           15   business plan and do all the rest, but while we are 
 
           16   business planning, let's do something, and that is we 
 
           17   have stuff that won't get done this year. 
 
           18                 MS. GEORGE:  That sounds a little bit 
 
           19   like what Bary was asking for too. 
 
           20                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Is there any way to 
 
           21   reinstate that funding, John, without having Congress 
 
           22   pass another law that allows you to spend in the 
 
           23   Monument, even though it's not Adventure Pass? 
 
           24                 MR. LADELY:  Really, that comes down to 
 
           25   the designation of making it a free area.  To do it 
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            1   otherwise would be revamping the whole fee demo 
 
            2   program, and we don't want to go there.  Really, 
 
            3   bottom line, it comes down to our designation and how 
 
            4   in the Forest Service we are set up with recreation 
 
            5   funding.  Part of it could be just restructuring our 
 
            6   own internal funding so that we had general recreation 
 
            7   funds directed towards Monument activities. 
 
            8                 MS. HENDERSON:  How do we pursue that? 
 
            9                 MS. LADELY:  Really, that's Forest 
 
           10   Service internal.  And through our own internal 
 
           11   funding. 
 
           12                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Laurie? 
 
           13                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  Another option is if 
 
           14   there was an amendment to the Monument Plan, then that 
 
           15   could help reinstate it.  Right now the Monument Plan 
 
           16   makes it Adventure Pass-free area.  And that really is 
 
           17   what everything is tiering from at this point. 
 
           18                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  So what you are 
 
           19   suggesting is we amend it back to make it Adventure 
 
           20   Pass and irritate the Congresswoman? 
 
           21                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  That is another option. 
 
           22   But the other thing -- never mind.  I don't want to 
 
           23   say this on the record. 
 
           24                 MR. MORGAN:  There are other areas which 
 
           25   you turn into free areas without them being in the 
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            1   National Monument, areas that got burned in the fires 
 
            2   and things like that.  So you are losing money in 
 
            3   other places, not just from us.  If you open an area 
 
            4   that got burned and say you don't need an Adventure 
 
            5   Pass anymore, and that's an area where someone goes, 
 
            6   he is going to save his 30 bucks a year and not spend 
 
            7   it. 
 
            8                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  There are some smaller 
 
            9   areas on the forest that are Adventure Pass-free in 
 
           10   addition to the Monument.  But this district has the 
 
           11   majority of the Adventure Pass-free area.  And as John 
 
           12   says, the formula isn't a buck for a buck.  You pay $2 
 
           13   and you get $20 in return. 
 
           14                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Well, it may very well 
 
           15   be that -- I certainly support the free concept and I 
 
           16   think it's great, but it's really an anomaly in the 
 
           17   whole business, as you know.  Almost everywhere you go 
 
           18   to recreate, you have to pay for it.  And respecting 
 
           19   the Congresswoman, who has done a lot, maybe we need 
 
           20   to at least revisit that issue and see if it's worth 
 
           21   pursuing as far as the charge.  Then how else do we 
 
           22   get money, Buford? 
 
           23                 MR. CRITES:  I would just make a comment 
 
           24   that we are going to open another issue of the whole 
 
           25   issue of we paid once by tax -- the issue of Adventure 
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            1   Passes is a contentious, both practically and 
 
            2   philosophically, issue, right or wrong, good or bad. 
 
            3   And I know we would be getting a lot of money and not 
 
            4   collecting much, and it's a good deal for us.  But 
 
            5   it's an issue and philosophy we really ought to talk 
 
            6   about.  And if we are looking for $15,000, my bias is 
 
            7   let's find another way to find it. 
 
            8                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  I think Bob has a very 
 
            9   good point, because once you start down, it's -- 
 
           10   Danella. 
 
           11                 MS. GEORGE:  Is an Adventure Pass done 
 
           12   and now it's just FLREA, the new law for Forest 
 
           13   Service, Fish and Wildlife Service and BLM?  It 
 
           14   wouldn't even be Adventure Pass anymore.  It would be 
 
           15   your collection at campsites, the way I understood it? 
 
           16                 MR. LADELY:  That's a really interesting 
 
           17   question that I don't have the answer for.  We are 
 
           18   awaiting direction from Washington office as far as 
 
           19   how they are going to interpret that or massage it or 
 
           20   whatever term you would like to put to it.  So we 
 
           21   don't have direction from the Washington office.  So 
 
           22   I'm not going to make any guesses how that is going to 
 
           23   be played out. 
 
           24                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  The direction is that 
 
           25   things will remain the same because -- even though 
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            1   right now it's not a parking fee, for example, but 
 
            2   it's an activity fee, so even though you are parking, 
 
            3   you pay for the activity.  So we don't foresee there 
 
            4   is going to be a difference, but we could be 
 
            5   surprised. 
 
            6                 MR. MORGAN:  So you park for free and 
 
            7   have the pass with you when you walk instead of 
 
            8   leaving it in the car? 
 
            9                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  I don't know how, but, 
 
           10   yes, it's a possibility. 
 
           11                 MS. GEORGE:  That's a seamless sort of 
 
           12   thing; right? 
 
           13                 MS. WATLEY:  For clarification, are we 
 
           14   talking about -- the pass that we were just talking 
 
           15   about is now becoming some sort of other different 
 
           16   kind of program? 
 
           17                 MS. GEORGE:  Yeah, there is a new law 
 
           18   that was passed this year or last year?  FLREA, the 
 
           19   FLREA? 
 
           20                 MR. MORGAN:  Last year. 
 
           21                 MS. GEORGE:  The stuff we were presented 
 
           22   in Bakersfield, the federal fee, blah-blah-blah. 
 
           23                 MR. CRITES:  Interference and 
 
           24   Foolishness Act. 
 
           25                 MS. GEORGE:  There you go.  Buford's got 
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            1   it.  I don't have my notebook with me, Ruth, but it's 
 
            2   about this fee stuff and how you do the fee thing. 
 
            3   And it's changed.  It's changed, and it's something we 
 
            4   do need to present to the MAC, and you all do need to 
 
            5   look at it at some point. 
 
            6                 MR. FOOTE:  As a fundamental issue, for 
 
            7   years we have been under recreation fee demonstration. 
 
            8   And that's gone on, been authorized on a sporadic 
 
            9   basis by Congress.  And continuing that, this becomes 
 
           10   permanent legislation.  So it's not only recreation 
 
           11   fee demonstration.  It's the recreation fee program. 
 
           12   It's pretty much going to stay status quo.  And we 
 
           13   just will continue to look at places where we can 
 
           14   collect money, if possible. 
 
           15              Again, I think it comes down to service for 
 
           16   the fees.  People pay a fee for a service.  And if you 
 
           17   are not providing a service, then the rationale for 
 
           18   collecting a fee is pretty thin.  So those are the 
 
           19   kinds of things we looked at over time, and we will 
 
           20   continue to look at that.  And our fees still need to 
 
           21   come under our authorities for collecting fees. 
 
           22              For recreation, that's our regulations 
 
           23   dealing with special recreation permits, and what 
 
           24   latitude does that give us for collecting fees?  Some 
 
           25   of it is something that opens it up into our making a 
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            1   decision, because it's a not "shall," it's a "may 
 
            2   collect."  And one of our regulations does deal with, 
 
            3   we may collect fees in a special area.  Monument is 
 
            4   defined as a special area.  It gives us some authority 
 
            5   to do that. 
 
            6                 MR. CRITES:  Would that mean that we 
 
            7   could have permits and fees for hiking? 
 
            8                 MR. FOOTE:  We could, yes.  We could. 
 
            9   That is allowed under the authority. 
 
           10                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Gail. 
 
           11                 MS. ACHESON:  I have a question about -- 
 
           12   I recognize the Forest Service definitely has a 
 
           13   funding issue.  And we at BLM do too.  And if we were 
 
           14   to revisit this in some format, again, we would try to 
 
           15   be consistent because we have our -- we are not saying 
 
           16   that these two programs are the same, is that correct, 
 
           17   under the new law? 
 
           18                 MR. FOOTE:  With the Forest Service? 
 
           19                 MS. ACHESON:  The Adventure Pass and the 
 
           20   recreation fee. 
 
           21                 MR. FOOTE:  I think the key is the 
 
           22   overall legislation under direct (inaudible), which 
 
           23   now became permanent legislation, applies to Forest 
 
           24   Service.  But we have our own authorities, like the 
 
           25   Adventure Pass thing was not applicable to the 
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            1   non-Forest Service Agency. 
 
            2                 MS. ACHESON:  I guess my point is that 
 
            3   as far as the public goes, with trying to -- if we 
 
            4   were to pursue this, we want to make it as seamless as 
 
            5   possible.  If you go on this spot and you need this 
 
            6   permit, and you go over there and you need that 
 
            7   permit, that's not really a good point of service. 
 
            8                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  We are going to have to 
 
            9   cut off the discussion here because it's 11 o'clock 
 
           10   and we are supposed to have public comment, so we can 
 
           11   come back to this, although I think we are not making 
 
           12   a lot of progress. 
 
           13                 MS. ROCHE:  I was going to suggest 
 
           14   before we go on is we are not making progress.  It 
 
           15   sounds to me like there is a new law funding fee that 
 
           16   we need to look at.  And the other issue seems to be 
 
           17   semantics.  And maybe we need on the next MAC meeting 
 
           18   to look at the new law, look at how we can open up the 
 
           19   possibility for pay-for-service in some avenues that 
 
           20   takes out that Adventure Pass-free -- you know, takes 
 
           21   out that part of it without being -- putting the onus 
 
           22   on it.  Maybe it's semantics in there.  But we can't 
 
           23   decide it today. 
 
           24              And I think we need to move forward and 
 
           25   simply direct that we look at the new law and then 
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            1   look at how we can make it seamless, but give us the 
 
            2   possibility of allowing fees that would bring these 
 
            3   things back on the budget process, back into servicing 
 
            4   the Monument. 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Since we are to advise 
 
            6   the agencies on this, as I learned this morning again, 
 
            7   then perhaps we need to have that information at the 
 
            8   next meeting.  And we need to know what the problems 
 
            9   are, why the Monument is not getting adequate funding 
 
           10   as a Monument, and what are the ways around that.  How 
 
           11   can we help as an Advisory Committee, help you get 
 
           12   there to that point instead of just talking about it. 
 
           13   So I think we need more structure and more active 
 
           14   participation and pushing from you folks at the 
 
           15   federal level to see what we can do as a committee to 
 
           16   help you attain that goal. 
 
           17                 MR. MORGAN:  Briefly, my understanding 
 
           18   is this legislation allowed for one big bump of fun 
 
           19   pass, like the National Parks Pass that gets you into 
 
           20   every other National Park.  For 10 bucks more, it gets 
 
           21   you into every other federal land.  You just have this 
 
           22   one pass for $50 or $60 -- I don't know what it was -- 
 
           23   per year that covers you for everything. 
 
           24              How they would share that money with 
 
           25   individual Monuments, I don't know. 
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            1                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  I think we will learn 
 
            2   at the next meeting the whole history of the fees. 
 
            3                 MR. FOOTE:  Just one final comment.  Of 
 
            4   course, we actually have a National Scenic Area in the 
 
            5   Santa Rosas, fee collection and possibilities, and one 
 
            6   of the complicating factors has always been the 
 
            7   complex land ownership pattern, the urban interface, 
 
            8   and the manner in which you collect fees for use on 
 
            9   federal lands only and how that plays into use with 
 
           10   nonfederal land.  And how that is all mixed together 
 
           11   is very problematic. 
 
           12              Certainly the pass issue goes to where you 
 
           13   collect fees as an entrance fee.  We've never had an 
 
           14   entrance fee here.  Even the Desert Adventure Pass is 
 
           15   not an entrance fee.  So I don't know as if we would 
 
           16   be in a position to ever share the funds collected 
 
           17   through that National Pass because we are not a site 
 
           18   designated for entrance fees. 
 
           19                 MS. HENDERSON:  Oh, God. 
 
           20                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  At the next meeting we 
 
           21   will have a lot more detail.  Jim, I have a feeling 
 
           22   you are going to be making a long presentation.  So 
 
           23   I'm going to close this discussion and move to public 
 
           24   comment.  Do we have any members of the public that 
 
           25   want to make any statements or comments? 
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            1                 MS. KATY:  I'm sorry.  I arrived late. 
 
            2                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Please state your name 
 
            3   and address and speak loudly and slowly for our 
 
            4   reporter. 
 
            5                 MS. KATY:  Yes, sir.  My name is Gail 
 
            6   Katy.  My address is 82831 Avenue 54 in Vista, Santa 
 
            7   Rosa, California. 
 
            8              The reason that I'm here today is because, 
 
            9   unknown to a great number of people in our Coachella 
 
           10   Valley, we have a national historical incredible 
 
           11   happening in the Santa Rosa Mountains on the west side 
 
           12   of Avenue 62.  What this site represents is the 
 
           13   Martinez Mountain slide.  It's not a very well-known 
 
           14   entity.  It happened several hundred years ago.  The 
 
           15   time is not explicit in any research that I have been 
 
           16   able to acquire.  But just to give you a little 
 
           17   idea -- and I do have a handout for the committee -- I 
 
           18   think I have this here.  I'm sorry. 
 
           19                 MS. HENDERSON:  I think I brought mine, 
 
           20   Gail. 
 
           21                 MS. KATY:  Just to kind of give you an 
 
           22   idea, several hundred years ago when there was seismic 
 
           23   activity, they believe it was on the Oasis Fault.  You 
 
           24   have the San Jacinto on the west; and then you have 
 
           25   the Arturo Canyon Fault where the Travertine Project 
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            1   is going to happen at the end of 52; and then you have 
 
            2   the Oasis Fault. 
 
            3              Several hundred years ago when the seismic 
 
            4   activity happened and the earth shook, rather than the 
 
            5   mountain coming apart, it came down.  It broke in half 
 
            6   on the east face of this mountain, and it slid down 
 
            7   the hill.  Now, they guesstimate that it was about 500 
 
            8   miles an hour and that it came down on a cushion of 
 
            9   air.  The twin peak was an elevation at the time of 
 
           10   6,320 feet.  The slide mass covers about 1,950 acres 
 
           11   or 3.04 miles.  Boulders perch on slopes precariously 
 
           12   at a steep as high as one and a half to one.  There 
 
           13   are megaliths or high ridges of rock 55 feet long and 
 
           14   25 feet high.  The volume of depleted material is 
 
           15   calculated at 635 million cubic yards. 
 
           16              Now, all of this is a lot to throw at you 
 
           17   at one time.  I do have a fact sheet for the 
 
           18   committee.  The reason I'm bringing this up is because 
 
           19   at the present time, to my knowledge, this particular 
 
           20   site, because it is relatively unknown, is not a 
 
           21   preserved entity for the American people.  At the 
 
           22   present time there is a project called Travertine 
 
           23   Development Project.  The Travertine Development 
 
           24   Project consumes 900 acres.  They are conceding 150 of 
 
           25   the 900 for the preservation of sheep.  They are also 
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            1   delegating $500,000 to US Fish and Wildlife for 
 
            2   collars and sheep research.  And they are contributing 
 
            3   an additional $2 million for other preservation of 
 
            4   sheep, things like acquisition of other land in other 
 
            5   habitats.  I don't know if they have told the sheep, 
 
            6   but the sheep have to move. 
 
            7              I have a map here to show you folks.  It's 
 
            8   an aerial map.  I thought I did.  I'm sorry, I brought 
 
            9   some.  I was hoping we will have an aerial map of 
 
           10   the -- does that show? 
 
           11                 MR. CRITES:  No. 
 
           12                 MS. KATY:  That's not the eastern 
 
           13   valley? 
 
           14                 MR. CRITES:  No. 
 
           15                 MS. KATY:  This is basically the eastern 
 
           16   Coachella Valley area.  Right here is Lake Cahuilla, 
 
           17   this little, like, kidney-shaped.  This is what we 
 
           18   call the Boo Hoff Trail.  These are the Santa Rosa 
 
           19   Mountains on the west side.  Right here is known as 
 
           20   the Martinez Rock Slide. 
 
           21              At the present time the Travertine 
 
           22   Development Company wants to put a horseshoe around 
 
           23   the toe of this slide and prohibit forever any access 
 
           24   to any public entity.  I don't believe this is the 
 
           25   correct thing to think about.  I think we should allow 
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            1   the American people to see this.  I think it ought to 
 
            2   be historically preserved.  I think it should be 
 
            3   included in the National Monument if at all possible. 
 
            4   And I have letters and information with regards to the 
 
            5   minutes at La Quinta City Council that explains all 
 
            6   the things I'm talking about. 
 
            7              Additionally, I have proposed an extension 
 
            8   of the Boo Hoff Trail, which at the present time the 
 
            9   Travertine Company is under negotiations with Fish and 
 
           10   Wildlife to delete this portion of the Boo Hoff Trail, 
 
           11   which leads off like in a "V" over here to the dike. 
 
           12              Now, these trails are historically 
 
           13   phenomenal.  They go back hundreds of years.  The 
 
           14   Cahuilla Indians used the trails, the hikers and 
 
           15   equestrians used the trails.  These should be 
 
           16   preserved for perpetuity.  The toe of the slide on the 
 
           17   top is part of BLM.  It's my understanding that BLM is 
 
           18   in control of the top of the toe of the slide. 
 
           19   However, there seems to be some question as to who is 
 
           20   legitimately in charge of the base of the toe. 
 
           21              My idea is to have enough space at the base 
 
           22   of the toe to allow for equestrian and hiker access. 
 
           23   Perhaps just the public in general, maybe tourists, et 
 
           24   cetera.  But to fence that off, literally, and only 
 
           25   allow a guided tour at the convenience of the 
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            1   development company I believe is wrong. 
 
            2              The idea -- 
 
            3                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Gail, can you wrap up 
 
            4   in like a minute or two? 
 
            5                 MS. KATY:  I'm sorry.  I'm a little 
 
            6   passionate about trails. 
 
            7              I also had suggested to CVAG that they not 
 
            8   only leave this portion of the Boo Hoff Trail, but 
 
            9   they continue it around the base of the toe of the 
 
           10   slide, go directly eastward, basically in a sort of 
 
           11   straight line to the dike, which will end up at the 
 
           12   Coachella Valley Park and Recreation District Trail, 
 
           13   and additionally "V" off again and go down here to the 
 
           14   end of the dike, which will hook up to the Martinez 
 
           15   Canyon. 
 
           16              Now, by making it a public trail, a 
 
           17   non-motorized multipurpose trail, we will be able to 
 
           18   protect our citizens; we will be able to show them 
 
           19   some of the scenic sites in the area.  And 
 
           20   additionally, we will be able to preserve the site for 
 
           21   everyone to see. 
 
           22              Does anybody have any questions? 
 
           23                 MS. HENDERSON:  No, I don't have a 
 
           24   question, Gail.  I have a comment. 
 
           25              Comment:  I appreciate Gail being here.  We 
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            1   all see Gail quite frequently because the truth is, 
 
            2   she is very passionate about the trail system.  The 
 
            3   direction that was given to the developer at the last 
 
            4   La Quinta City Council meeting was to revisit his 
 
            5   plans at that time as it regards the Martinez Rock 
 
            6   Slide.  It's my understanding some of those meetings 
 
            7   have already been had, and that there is some progress 
 
            8   being made.  I did not want you to leave this 
 
            9   committee with the expectation that nothing is being 
 
           10   looked at, because it is. 
 
           11                 MS. KATY:  Oh, good. 
 
           12                 MS. HENDERSON:  I think you heard that 
 
           13   very clearly at the meeting to look at that.  So I 
 
           14   would hope that we could kind of wait out some of the 
 
           15   process on this and work together and try to make all 
 
           16   things possible. 
 
           17                 MS. KATY:  Yes, ma'am. 
 
           18                 MR. MORGAN:  I had a question.  I felt 
 
           19   the rock slide was within the Monument. 
 
           20                 MR. HAVERT:  I believe it is.  The rock 
 
           21   slide is on BLM land, and I would be willing to bet at 
 
           22   least that that's part of the Monument boundaries. 
 
           23                 MS. HENDERSON:  I have always thought 
 
           24   so. 
 
           25                 MS. GEORGE:  The toe of the slope is 
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            1   actually outside the Monument boundary.  There is a 
 
            2   little bit of the toe right out, right out of the 
 
            3   Monument. 
 
            4                 MR. CRITES:  Most of it is. 
 
            5                 MS. GEORGE:  Most of it is in.  But the 
 
            6   toe, some of the significant stuff is out. 
 
            7                 MR. HAVERT:  This is by survey. 
 
            8                 MS. GEORGE:  That was private land where 
 
            9   that toe of slope is. 
 
           10                 MS. HENDERSON:  We have private land in 
 
           11   the Monument. 
 
           12                 MR. HAVERT:  The aerial maps I'm looking 
 
           13   at seem to show that the entire rock slide is on a 
 
           14   BLM-owned parcel. 
 
           15                 MS. GEORGE:  The way I really first saw 
 
           16   it was USGS 14 -- I think 14 and a half minutes was 
 
           17   where I could really see it.  Actually, Frank Jones 
 
           18   pointed it out as not being all within the Monument 
 
           19   boundary when they were doing the international 
 
           20   mapping. 
 
           21                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Anything else?  We are 
 
           22   running a little bit behind.  And Frank has been 
 
           23   postponed for quite a few minutes now.  It's 11:17. 
 
           24   We are supposed to adjourn by 12 at the latest.  So 
 
           25   Frank, I understand you have about 20 minutes; is that 
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            1   correct? 
 
            2                 MR. JONES:  Yes, certainly. 
 
            3                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  The pleasure of the 
 
            4   committee is to move on.  Frank, would you make your 
 
            5   presentation, please. 
 
            6                 MR. JONES:  This is on branding.  And I 
 
            7   was asked to come and speak on branding.  And 
 
            8   certainly, I'm no expert in branding, but we have been 
 
            9   talking about it in terms of the National Monument's 
 
           10   goals.  And a lot of the things that my company and 
 
           11   people we have been working with have been doing are 
 
           12   sort of by default branding the Monument. 
 
           13              And I think that it's important at this 
 
           14   point to really get some input from you as to the 
 
           15   direction.  Certainly sitting here this morning, you 
 
           16   have a lot on your plate, a lot of complex issues, and 
 
           17   that all reflects on what this Monument is and what we 
 
           18   are doing with it. 
 
           19              So it's kind of funny to think about a land 
 
           20   mass and try and brand it.  Most of the books I have 
 
           21   read on branding are about corporations and 
 
           22   organizations.  I would think that Ed Abbey would be 
 
           23   slapping us in the face right now if we were taking a 
 
           24   land mass and trying to kind of plasticize it through 
 
           25   a branding initiative, which kind of grates on me a 
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            1   little bit. 
 
            2              But that being the case, we do have this 
 
            3   land mass.  It will shape the future of this area.  It 
 
            4   will overcome the identities of our cities.  It will 
 
            5   overcome the identity that is currently seen from the 
 
            6   outside of what this area is.  It will reshape how 
 
            7   this area is looked at.  And you certainly sit at the 
 
            8   core of how that is. 
 
            9              Frank Bogert has had a lot of expertise 
 
           10   about branding regions.  And he can certainly speak to 
 
           11   this a lot better than I can.  But I can tell you what 
 
           12   we have been doing, and we can talk a little bit how 
 
           13   to maybe corral this a little bit so that our 
 
           14   initiatives dovetail with what you are doing. 
 
           15              We produced a printed piece -- well, let's 
 
           16   talk about branding a little bit.  You know, the 
 
           17   branding of an area is important in that the main 
 
           18   important thing to remember about that is to get 
 
           19   outside of yourself.  We are talking about a lot of 
 
           20   intense issues here and have very narrow focuses on 
 
           21   what is going on, and you have to do that to make 
 
           22   decisions on what is going on.  But the public looking 
 
           23   in doesn't see all this.  They don't see this at all. 
 
           24   They don't even know there is a National Monument, for 
 
           25   the most part.  Most people I talk to don't even 
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            1   realize that these mountains are part of a National 
 
            2   Monument and even have a name for it. 
 
            3              So from a branding perspective, that's not 
 
            4   very good.  But from a branding perspective, it is 
 
            5   very good because what you create now you can 
 
            6   basically start from scratch with because there isn't 
 
            7   a lot of awareness out there. 
 
            8              When I speak to people about the National 
 
            9   Monument, most people can't even get the name right. 
 
           10   It's a long name.  It's a complex name.  It's got 
 
           11   identities that are applied to cities up in Northern 
 
           12   California and all kinds of interpretations.  So as 
 
           13   you look at a branding effort as it goes to the 
 
           14   outside world, they are going to see the very tip of 
 
           15   what you are communicating, and that's immediately 
 
           16   your name.  And that's about as far as most people are 
 
           17   ever going to get.  They are going to see a name, and 
 
           18   they are going to have an image with that. 
 
           19              Right now, Santa Rosa, San Jacinto 
 
           20   Mountains National Monument doesn't really have an 
 
           21   iconic image behind it that gives an identity that 
 
           22   would be considered a brand.  You know, most people 
 
           23   would think of the city of Santa Rosa and the gardens 
 
           24   up there and something like that.  They don't really 
 
           25   have an identification for it.  They don't even relate 
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            1   it to the desert resorts. 
 
            2              So there is a possibility that you could 
 
            3   even consider a name change of this Monument to give 
 
            4   it more of an iconic representation of what is in the 
 
            5   Monument that's simpler, that people can grasp on an 
 
            6   immediate basis, that they can pull in and identity 
 
            7   with so you are not continually having to identify 
 
            8   yourself. 
 
            9              I pulled up a list the other day of all the 
 
           10   National Monuments in the country, and there was 
 
           11   probably 100 or so on there.  And I read through them 
 
           12   and there was probably two that were -- I was able to 
 
           13   put an image to, an image to that I understood where 
 
           14   it was and what it was about.  And if it weren't for 
 
           15   the fact about Santa Rosa, me living here, I wouldn't 
 
           16   know what that one was about at all or even where it 
 
           17   was. 
 
           18                 MS. HENDERSON:  What were the two? 
 
           19                 MR. JONES:  One was -- they actually 
 
           20   still had Joshua Tree on there.  It hadn't moved over 
 
           21   from that list.  And the other was one in Florida that 
 
           22   talked about the Everglades, and so I had an image of 
 
           23   where that was because I had been down there.  But it 
 
           24   actually had Everglades in the name so you had 
 
           25   something you could identify with. 
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            1              When you think about Joshua Tree National 
 
            2   Monument, I think there is an immediate identification 
 
            3   there.  When I talk to people outside of this area 
 
            4   about Joshua Tree National Monument, they know where 
 
            5   it is and they have some perspective about what a 
 
            6   Joshua tree is and what the area represents. 
 
            7              So to make your lives more complex and yet 
 
            8   more simple, there is an identity problem here.  And 
 
            9   how you move forward with that and how you define that 
 
           10   identity is going to be a challenge.  But you are at a 
 
           11   great spot right now because there is nothing that has 
 
           12   been initiated in the marketplace that the public is 
 
           13   aware of. 
 
           14              That's changing very quickly.  Obviously, 
 
           15   with your initiatives here and certainly with some of 
 
           16   the things that we have been working on, including our 
 
           17   printed collateral, we have a documentary piece 
 
           18   that -- part of it is finished and ready to be shown. 
 
           19   But we need to talk about the timing of that and its 
 
           20   implications and how it's going to define and put 
 
           21   pressure on your resources and the decisions you are 
 
           22   going to make, and how it can help you raise money. 
 
           23   There are a lot of things that need to be decided. 
 
           24              In a branding initiative there are some 
 
           25   things that need to happen.  One, consider the public 
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            1   first.  Put yourself in their shoes always.  If they 
 
            2   don't get it, they are only going to see it 
 
            3   superficially.  You've got to stay with that.  From 
 
            4   that pyramid all your different entities and 
 
            5   definitions can evolve from that and be defined by 
 
            6   you.  And people that want to access that can go and 
 
            7   get that information. 
 
            8              But in terms of how you present yourselves, 
 
            9   it has to be that simple message:  The name, a 
 
           10   subhead, and an iconic image that goes along with it. 
 
           11   That's it.  Your type style, your color pallet should 
 
           12   all stay within that framework. 
 
           13              And in an organization as diverse as this, 
 
           14   there has to be a gatekeeper that keeps that 
 
           15   information together and keeps everybody sort of in 
 
           16   line and in tune with that.  In my own organization, 
 
           17   we represent a number of different entities, and we 
 
           18   have a very difficult time branding our corporate 
 
           19   identity and all the various things that go on under 
 
           20   that. 
 
           21              Somebody creates a flyer or a letter, and 
 
           22   they don't stay within the color pallet, the tone, and 
 
           23   the messages get confused.  They get confused out in 
 
           24   the marketplace.  And with all the various 
 
           25   organizations that participate in this, it's going to 
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            1   be a challenge to keep that focused and keep that 
 
            2   direction going.  You need to pinpoint somebody that 
 
            3   is going to corral that for you, to take that burden 
 
            4   off you and set that standard.  We have been doing 
 
            5   that by default.  We picked a type style and color 
 
            6   pallet for you, and we've been marching down the road 
 
            7   with it.  And really, you don't want to leave it up to 
 
            8   us because we don't do such a good job on our own 
 
            9   initiatives. 
 
           10              So that would be the core -- the two core 
 
           11   things to remember is, one, to stay focused on what 
 
           12   the public perceives and sensitive to that and get out 
 
           13   of the heat of your discussions and remember what the 
 
           14   public is looking for and what they can actually 
 
           15   interpret.  And then within your organization, once 
 
           16   you have made your decisions, you have to stick with 
 
           17   it.  You have got to be disciplined, and you have got 
 
           18   to stay with your initial decisions.  That doesn't 
 
           19   mean that you can't creatively change as your Monument 
 
           20   evolves, as your initiative evolves, as you add things 
 
           21   like possibly hang gliding or whatever you decide to 
 
           22   do that adds dimension to the Monument, but overall 
 
           23   that one messaging stays true. 
 
           24              And at the end of that, whether it's -- at 
 
           25   the end of that, probably what is going to happen is 
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            1   you will have an easier time of raising money.  People 
 
            2   have an easier time of understanding what you are 
 
            3   trying to do here.  And $15,000 won't become a 
 
            4   difficult issue anymore because people will have an 
 
            5   understanding of what this Monument represents, its 
 
            6   importance to this area, and how to respect that land 
 
            7   and work with it. 
 
            8              From my perspective, it's at a very tenuous 
 
            9   time because there are demands on the land and there 
 
           10   isn't the organization and resources, obviously, to 
 
           11   support it.  And there isn't the understanding out 
 
           12   there of what is going on.  So it's a tremendous 
 
           13   effort for a body of land to brand itself, and you 
 
           14   have a lot of work to do.  And our organization, the 
 
           15   company that I represent, is trying to help and do 
 
           16   that, but it needs some input to do that.  It needs 
 
           17   some designation from you as to what that message is. 
 
           18              Do you have your business card, Danella? 
 
           19   If you could read the back of it for me, that would be 
 
           20   great, if you have that little message.  What does 
 
           21   that say?  It says "From Desert Oasis to Granite 
 
           22   Peaks, the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto National 
 
           23   Monument is a land of contrast with stories of 
 
           24   adaptation." 
 
           25              It's a big subhead and a lot of meaning for 
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            1   the common folks out there.  So even looking at that, 
 
            2   I mean, I would pare that down to "From Desert Oasis 
 
            3   to Granite Peaks," period, and leave it at that. 
 
            4   That's how simple you have to get in your messaging to 
 
            5   the outside world.  The rest of it?  Too much.  They 
 
            6   don't get it.  And whether or not you are a land of 
 
            7   access or a land of conservation, you have to deal 
 
            8   with that.  And that's going to have to become clear, 
 
            9   particularly as your fundraising initiatives go 
 
           10   forward.  That's going to probably be the trickiest 
 
           11   balance of how you brand this land. 
 
           12              There is a guy out here that lives in La 
 
           13   Quinta that's a "supposed" expert in branding.  He has 
 
           14   worked with Starbucks and Whirlpool, and he is 
 
           15   currently working with the CVA and the City of Palm 
 
           16   Springs in branding.  I personally think that they are 
 
           17   making huge mistakes in their branding initiatives. 
 
           18   And you can quote me on that.  But he is available to 
 
           19   help in that process. 
 
           20                 MS. HENDERSON:  Duane Knapp? 
 
           21                 MR. JONES:  Yeah, Duane Knapp.  I don't 
 
           22   subscribe to what he has written in his book, but he 
 
           23   is out here as a resource. 
 
           24              I think it's important in any branding 
 
           25   initiative that there is an organic nature to it, that 
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            1   it evolves from the outside in, not some contrived, 
 
            2   manipulated message from the inside out.  And most of 
 
            3   the branding initiatives are the opposite.  And 
 
            4   particularly when you are dealing with this land that 
 
            5   you have and this resource that you have, I think that 
 
            6   its organic nature needs to be the overwhelming 
 
            7   messaging that's going on. 
 
            8              I don't know where you are going with all 
 
            9   your initiatives and what you are doing.  Like I said, 
 
           10   we have a lot of stuff that we are working on.  And 
 
           11   currently we have been running it through BLM and they 
 
           12   basically say yea or nay.  But we are here to help and 
 
           13   we are here to talk about it.  So if you have any 
 
           14   questions on this issue, we can go over that. 
 
           15              Does that make sense? 
 
           16                 MS. ROSENTHAL:  We had the pleasure of 
 
           17   listening to Frank previously in a meeting, and I 
 
           18   don't know if there is any time, and this is kind of a 
 
           19   subtopic, so we don't need to talk about this.  We 
 
           20   also talked about the logo.  And Frank had some 
 
           21   perceptions on that. 
 
           22                 MR. JONES:  Yeah.  The logo is a 
 
           23   beautiful logo and it has a lot of wonderful 
 
           24   representations in it, but it's not immediately 
 
           25   identifiable in terms of simplicity.  You have to be 
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            1   thinking iconically.  Immediately you are able to 
 
            2   grasp what it is.  And I would also say that in 
 
            3   conjunction with that, your name is not easy to grasp. 
 
            4   I think if we went around this group, we would get six 
 
            5   or seven different names for the Monument that would 
 
            6   come out of it. 
 
            7              So I don't want to complicate your life, 
 
            8   but you may want to consider changing the name of the 
 
            9   name of the Monument:  Palms to Pines National 
 
           10   Monument; Big Horn National Monument, something that 
 
           11   we can grasp onto a little easier.  I know it takes a 
 
           12   leap of effort and a leap of pride, and the way these 
 
           13   mountains have been named are important to us all. 
 
           14   But if we are talking about a branding initiative, 
 
           15   these are the types of decisions you have to make. 
 
           16              With that name, I think the logo would 
 
           17   evolve to something that would be more recognizable 
 
           18   and easier to grasp as something that's a visual that 
 
           19   goes with a name.  So you've got a name, you've got a 
 
           20   visual, and you have a subhead.  And that's about what 
 
           21   the public is going to grasp.  That's your core and 
 
           22   that's what is on everything you are going to do, from 
 
           23   business card, to the letterhead, to a speech, to a 
 
           24   Power Point, to a sign, everything.  That's the 
 
           25   consistency and the discipline you have to have with 
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            1   that.  And you stay within that color pallet. 
 
            2              So that's just my perspective with it.  I 
 
            3   have worked with the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto name 
 
            4   for a long time now, and I still can't get it right. 
 
            5   I find myself speaking, and I mess it up all the time. 
 
            6   And if I'm messing it up, the public is never going to 
 
            7   get it.  Not that I'm brilliant or anything, but they 
 
            8   are not.  But -- so I think that's what we talked 
 
            9   about.  We talked about a lot of details and 
 
           10   suggestions, but again, you know, you are at the 
 
           11   advantage of starting from scratch from the public 
 
           12   looking in.  And that's a very good thing. 
 
           13                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Any questions? 
 
           14                 MR. MORGAN:  Comment.  Frank, thank you 
 
           15   for your presentation. 
 
           16              Quick comment about Joshua Tree.  The 
 
           17   reason you probably remember that one and most other 
 
           18   people do is it was formed in 1935.  And I guess for 
 
           19   the first 20 to 30 years, nobody knew anything about 
 
           20   it.  So it does take time before things stay. 
 
           21              The Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains 
 
           22   National Monument is now becoming well-known.  It's 
 
           23   showing up on all maps, topo maps.  You buy a new map 
 
           24   of California, whatever, it's there.  There is a lot 
 
           25   of publicity both at the national level, guide books 
                                                                    112 
 
                    GILLESPIE REPORTING & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT, INC. 



            1   are appearing in the stores, bird lists.  It just 
 
            2   takes time. 
 
            3              So we have been in this business for five 
 
            4   years and about ten years before that as a national 
 
            5   scenic area.  National scenic areas generally don't 
 
            6   get much attention anyway.  But now it's the National 
 
            7   Monument, and the education process is in place.  I 
 
            8   think it's becoming more and more well-known, and it 
 
            9   will become more and more well-known. 
 
           10                 MR. JONES:  I think you are right.  I 
 
           11   think it does take time.  And eventually, like I said, 
 
           12   because of the importance of this land, whatever you 
 
           13   call it, it's going to dominate everything.  The 
 
           14   importance of this land is where the future is.  It's 
 
           15   not going to be in XYZ casino or XYZ resort or XYZ 
 
           16   city.  It's this land.  As the pressure on this land 
 
           17   grows, its value is going to grow.  And that's going 
 
           18   to oversee anything. 
 
           19              I think that's happening quicker than it's 
 
           20   happening in the span of Joshua Tree.  I think that 
 
           21   that pressure is now.  And that's only going to 
 
           22   increase, as we are seeing with the Martinez Rock 
 
           23   Slide and what is going on along there.  And that's 
 
           24   going to call attention to it in a lot quicker fashion 
 
           25   than the way Joshua Tree was.  The interest in the 
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            1   outdoors and the interest in these mountains are going 
 
            2   to grow at a much faster pace, much faster pace. 
 
            3                 MR. CRITES:  I don't know if we are past 
 
            4   the point or not, but I'll just express positive 
 
            5   comments about the fact that we as a culture love 
 
            6   short names.  We don't like long names.  We abbreviate 
 
            7   every darn one we can and make it shorter yet.  It 
 
            8   used to be "The Living Desert Reserve."  It's now 
 
            9   "Living Desert."  We got rid of "the" and the 
 
           10   "reserve."  That's who we are.  If we are too late to 
 
           11   do that, so be it, but "Palms to Pines" or Frank 
 
           12   Bogert's National Monument or something of that 
 
           13   nature -- 
 
           14                 MR. BOGERT:  Good idea. 
 
           15                 MS. HENDERSON:  He is the National 
 
           16   Monument. 
 
           17                 MR. CRITES:  -- that does encapsulate it 
 
           18   quickly. 
 
           19                 MS. HENDERSON:  Well, I have been 
 
           20   through the branding process with Duane Knapp and 
 
           21   other organizations and other brands and issues.  And 
 
           22   I tend to favor what you are saying and the 
 
           23   abbreviated name.  But I happen to think in this 
 
           24   particular case, I think we are too far down the road. 
 
           25   I personally refer to it as the Santa Rosa-San Jacinto 
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            1   National Monument.  I just never say "mountains."  If 
 
            2   somebody needs that word in there, I will go back and 
 
            3   fill it in for them.  I just don't say it. 
 
            4              But I kind of think that we are into this 
 
            5   commitment too far.  I'm comfortable with it.  I think 
 
            6   because of the media that we have today and instant 
 
            7   communication -- that's why it took 35 years for 
 
            8   Joshua Tree.  We can do that overnight.  We can do 35 
 
            9   years overnight.  And I think we have done that.  And 
 
           10   I, frankly, have never, ever had a logo put in front 
 
           11   of me that I immediately took to like I did this one. 
 
           12   Now, that's a personal opinion.  We had nothing to do 
 
           13   with it.  I don't know where Danella came up with it, 
 
           14   but one day -- 
 
           15                 MS. GEORGE:  Robin Kobaly did the logo, 
 
           16   and at one point in time it had a rattle snake.  We 
 
           17   had never done consultation with Agua Caliente, which 
 
           18   recommended that.  There is some spiritual rationale 
 
           19   that rattlesnake was taken out and we put the pine 
 
           20   cones and the mountains.  But Robin is the creator of 
 
           21   that.  She is a botanist. 
 
           22                 MS. HENDERSON:  Sometimes it's better 
 
           23   when the committee doesn't get involved because I 
 
           24   think they did an outstanding job. 
 
           25                 MS. ROCHE:  I agree with both -- all 
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            1   that's been said.  But I have only been on the Council 
 
            2   in Indian Wells for four years, and we are going 
 
            3   through our third iteration of going through branding, 
 
            4   and I can't believe it.  It's blowing my mind at how 
 
            5   many times we change our brand.  And we haven't -- the 
 
            6   problem is we haven't gotten it right for giving the 
 
            7   message of what we want to give once they started 
 
            8   changing.  And that happened before I got on board. 
 
            9   And we are going through a process now of bringing 
 
           10   Duane Knapp in again. 
 
           11              We have just gone through a process with 
 
           12   two different firms on rebranding for our overall city 
 
           13   with our renovation of our golf course.  And it's 
 
           14   driving us bonkers.  And I think part of it is what 
 
           15   Frank said, is I'm feeling like these companies are 
 
           16   doing it out of a vacuum.  They are not coming in and 
 
           17   living in our environment and understanding who it is 
 
           18   we are in the Coachella Valley, the mountains, and 
 
           19   what this environment means to all of us in our 
 
           20   quality of life. 
 
           21              And I think that in everything that I try 
 
           22   to say and promote, it's always all of that.  And then 
 
           23   the cities are just little -- they are individual 
 
           24   entities that are a part of that, but it's that -- the 
 
           25   overall valley and mountains that make it what it is 
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            1   for all of us.  And the cities are just a small part 
 
            2   of that. 
 
            3              So I don't think we have it right, either. 
 
            4   I mean, it's very hard to say Santa Rosa-San Jacinto 
 
            5   Mountains National Monument.  And then if you put on 
 
            6   "Advisory Committee" on top of that, and like "What 
 
            7   are you talking about?"  And you have already lost 
 
            8   people.  So we are down the road. 
 
            9              The other thing is I think if you are part 
 
           10   of us, you now know that this is the logo, but I don't 
 
           11   think it grabs you.  And I think that that's what 
 
           12   you -- I think you need something simpler that grabs 
 
           13   you.  You know New York is the Big Apple.  You know -- 
 
           14   there are certain things that just identify.  And all 
 
           15   you have to do is put an apple up, and aside from 
 
           16   Apple Computer, you know there are two apples in the 
 
           17   world. 
 
           18              And that's, I think, what we should be 
 
           19   trying to get to.  That then will help all of the 
 
           20   other entities here.  All the cities will benefit if 
 
           21   we come up with something that is unique and 
 
           22   identifiable.  And that video that Frank has put 
 
           23   together and what you have done in Palm Springs life 
 
           24   with promoting it, it's going to be awesome.  It's 
 
           25   absolutely going to be mind boggling for all of us in 
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            1   the year to come.  But we need to get it right so that 
 
            2   easily somebody can look at this without explaining it 
 
            3   to them and say what it is.  And this you have to 
 
            4   explain to anybody outside. 
 
            5              And that's where we in Indian Wells have 
 
            6   gone wrong.  We let the outside people come in and 
 
            7   say, "Look at this, look at this, this is going to be 
 
            8   great."  Guess what?  It doesn't fit us, and it 
 
            9   doesn't work. 
 
           10              So I think it's worth us -- we can't decide 
 
           11   it today but, again, it's like the other thing.  We 
 
           12   need to evaluate whether we should look at it, whether 
 
           13   we shouldn't look at it.  And as -- going forward and 
 
           14   whether we as policy makers want to look at the 
 
           15   possibility of analyzing whether it makes sense or 
 
           16   doesn't make sense to rebrand. 
 
           17                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Very well said, Mary. 
 
           18   And it sounds to me like you would be a perfect person 
 
           19   to head up a working group on branding. 
 
           20                 MS. ROCHE:  I would be happy to do that. 
 
           21                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Can I just go ahead and 
 
           22   do a branding working group? 
 
           23                 MS. GEORGE:  I will do it. 
 
           24                 CHAIRMAN WATT:  Hold your hands up. 
 
           25   Ruth, Bob, Kathy, Frank, and Barbara.  Wow, great. 
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            1                 MS. ACHESON:  Is there an opportunity 
 
            2   for the agencies to be there? 
 
            3                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Oh, absolutely. 
 
            4                 MS. ACHESON:  Laurie and I would like to 
 
            5   participate. 
 
            6                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Oh, absolutely.  I 
 
            7   didn't mean to imply that, Gail.  I was kind of 
 
            8   working with you, assuming you guys were going to 
 
            9   guide it. 
 
           10                 MS. GEORGE:  So Gail, Laurie and 
 
           11   Danella. 
 
           12                 MR. MORGAN:  Call it the Inter-agency 
 
           13   National Monument Committee. 
 
           14                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Frank. 
 
           15                 MR. JONES:  You are welcome. 
 
           16                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Danella, we have 
 
           17   another item up on the recharter of the committee. 
 
           18   And can you just lead us into that so we can take a 
 
           19   vote real fast? 
 
           20                 MS. GEORGE:  The charter will expire 
 
           21   October 10, 2005, so if you all want to stay in 
 
           22   business, we need to be rechartered. 
 
           23                 MS. ROCHE:  Move to recharter. 
 
           24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Second. 
 
           25                 MS. HENDERSON:  Are we approving the 
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            1   language here? 
 
            2                 MS. GEORGE:  Yes.  We will just go 
 
            3   through a recharter process.  FACA requires every two 
 
            4   years we change the language from "advising the 
 
            5   secretaries on the plan" to "advising the secretaries 
 
            6   on the implementation of the plan." 
 
            7                 MS. HENDERSON:  None of the original 
 
            8   language on the more particular things does not have 
 
            9   to be in the charter?  Okay. 
 
           10                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Any other discussion? 
 
           11   Seeing none, all those in favor, aye.  Any opposed? 
 
           12   None.  The motion carries.  We are rechartered, 
 
           13   apparently. 
 
           14              Okay.  Interpretive plan.  Tracy. 
 
           15                 MS. ALBRECHT:  The interpretive plan is 
 
           16   a piece that Frank referred to with a cover with a 
 
           17   logo on it.  And it was originated with the 
 
           18   contribution of the Forest Service, with an enterprise 
 
           19   team.  And I presented on this in the past already. 
 
           20   But since then, it's been updated and revised a bit, 
 
           21   but again, it was originated with the Forest Service 
 
           22   enterprise team and since then was brought here to a 
 
           23   MAC meeting.  And since then carefully reviewed with 
 
           24   Barbara's working group.  Bary Freet met with us as 
 
           25   well.  We had several meetings.  Ruth Watling also. 
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            1                 MS. GONZALES-LYONS:  The other part of 
 
            2   the working group. 
 
            3                 MS. ALBRECHT:  Yeah, the other part of 
 
            4   the working group with Wanda Raschkow and Barbara's 
 
            5   staff.  Jim Foote had input, and the (inaudible) 
 
            6   co-workers.  And there is a long list in the back of 
 
            7   other employees. 
 
            8              The interpretive approach is in sort of 
 
            9   three strategies:  Through environmental education, 
 
           10   public information, and signage.  A big change since 
 
           11   you last looked at it was the signage section was 
 
           12   completely removed, because we are going to work with 
 
           13   the signage subcommittee.  And that will be their own 
 
           14   signage plan.  So if there is a section out of this, 
 
           15   that's not about signage anymore. 
 
           16              There are not quite as many pictures, but I 
 
           17   do want to mention that with Gail's presentation, Gail 
 
           18   No. 2, on page one there is a picture of the site she 
 
           19   was talking about.  A pretty picture from Danella. 
 
           20                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Do you have an 
 
           21   extra one of those? 
 
           22                 MS. ALBRECHT:  I have one of the light 
 
           23   versions, but it's a black and white version.  After 
 
           24   it's approved, I will be glad to send you a copy. 
 
           25                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Excellent. 
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            1                 MS. ALBRECHT:  Your homework is just to 
 
            2   look through it and keep in correspondence with 
 
            3   Danella or I or Frank.  And also on page 26, I think 
 
            4   is a highlight you should all definitely take a look 
 
            5   at, and that it is priorities of action, a list of 
 
            6   projects that we are putting as high priority. 
 
            7              Any questions or comments? 
 
            8                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Tracy. 
 
            9                 MS. HENDERSON:  Are we approving this? 
 
           10                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  No.  Look it over prior 
 
           11   to the next meeting.  If you are missing pages, 
 
           12   contact Tracy, and we will get you straightened away. 
 
           13              A few more items, and then we are done. 
 
           14   Coachella Valley Multispecies Habitat Conservation 
 
           15   Plan. 
 
           16                 MR. HAVERT:  As you may have heard, the 
 
           17   Coachella Valley Association of Governments, otherwise 
 
           18   known as CVAG, has extended the public review and 
 
           19   comment period until March 7th on the plan and the 
 
           20   EIR/EIS.  There have been a total of five public 
 
           21   hearings now completed on that.  There aren't any more 
 
           22   scheduled. 
 
           23              CVAG executive committee also approved a 
 
           24   mailing to all landowners in the proposed conservation 
 
           25   areas, notifying them of the plan's availability for 
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            1   review and comment and the fact that the comment 
 
            2   period now expires on March 7.  And once the comment 
 
            3   period is concluded, then CVAG and the consultants and 
 
            4   the Fish and Wildlife Service and Fish and Game, BLM 
 
            5   is another one that is a participating agency on the 
 
            6   trails plan portion, will meet and begin the process 
 
            7   of responding to all the comments that have been 
 
            8   received on the plan, either orally at the public 
 
            9   meetings, or in writing, and will make whatever 
 
           10   changes to the plan that are warranted, based on the 
 
           11   input received. 
 
           12              When that process is completed, then the 
 
           13   final plan and the final EIR/EIS will go through the 
 
           14   CVAG committees for consideration and will have to go 
 
           15   through each one of the participating entities, so 
 
           16   each of the cities, the County of Riverside, Coachella 
 
           17   Valley Water District, Imperial Irrigation District, 
 
           18   and so on and so forth will also have to consider 
 
           19   that.  And assuming that all the agencies involved can 
 
           20   approve the final plan and EIR/EIS, the last step is 
 
           21   for Fish and Game and Fish and Wildlife to go through 
 
           22   their processes and issue their opinions. 
 
           23              So no specific time line on when that would 
 
           24   be completed, but hopefully, the end of this calendar 
 
           25   year or very early next year.  And obviously, anything 
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            1   and everything that can be done to expedite it and 
 
            2   make it happen as quickly as possible is being done. 
 
            3              One other comment, not on that, but back to 
 
            4   the issue of needs in the National Monument.  I know, 
 
            5   Gary, you suggested, I think, we agendize that at the 
 
            6   next meeting and look at that whole issue. 
 
            7              I would simply ask that that list of things 
 
            8   that needs to be done be gathered and distributed to 
 
            9   the committee members as quickly as possible so that 
 
           10   we can start figuring out anything that can be done to 
 
           11   help and also have had time to really think that 
 
           12   through before the next meeting. 
 
           13                 MS. HENDERSON:  Hear, hear. 
 
           14                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Very good suggestion. 
 
           15   Any questions of Bill? 
 
           16                 MS. WATLING:  Do you need additional 
 
           17   comments, letters, anything to support this? 
 
           18                 MR. HAVERT:  Whatever the spirit moves. 
 
           19                 MR. BOGERT:  At that last meeting we had 
 
           20   here, there must have been 200 people there.  I think 
 
           21   90 percent of them were against the whole idea.  I 
 
           22   didn't hear but two people speak in favor of it, and 
 
           23   everybody else was against it.  It looks to me like 
 
           24   all of the people that were on the -- are you on the 
 
           25   committee? 
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            1                 MR. HAVERT:  Well, I am one of the 
 
            2   consultants writing the plan. 
 
            3                 MR. BOGERT:  But there wasn't one person 
 
            4   up there that had ever ridden the trails or rode a 
 
            5   horse.  And they are all coming up with ideas about 
 
            6   trails.  They don't know a damn thing about what we 
 
            7   were talking about.  So we were all against it. 
 
            8                 MR. HAVERT:  Just to clarify, and I'm 
 
            9   not obviously (unintelligible) -- I don't know that 
 
           10   people were against the overall idea of a multispecies 
 
           11   plan.  I think they were against the current version 
 
           12   of the trails plan portion of it. 
 
           13                 MR. BOGERT:  Exactly. 
 
           14                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Okay.  Bob. 
 
           15                 MR. LYMAN:  A question for Bill. 
 
           16              Is there any possibility that CVAG may want 
 
           17   to take the trails portion of that plan and move it 
 
           18   out and adopt the balance of the multispecies plan? 
 
           19   And if so, would the agencies tolerate something like 
 
           20   that? 
 
           21                 MR. HAVERT:  I think at this point CVAG 
 
           22   is looking at -- is going to be looking at a variety 
 
           23   of options.  I think that the parameters within which 
 
           24   CVAG needs to think right now is what can be done 
 
           25   without triggering recirculation of the plan.  In 
                                                                    125 
 
                    GILLESPIE REPORTING & DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT, INC. 



            1   other words, if you have to go back and send the plan 
 
            2   out for a new round of review, modify, do a subsequent 
 
            3   EIR/EIS, then you have to consider how much additional 
 
            4   time are you adding to the process.  And probably 
 
            5   going in that direction adds a year, maybe more, to 
 
            6   the process.  And obviously, there are a lot of other 
 
            7   things hinging on this plan, such as freeway 
 
            8   interchanges and other public infrastructure, as well 
 
            9   as the fact that in the meantime, we are not 
 
           10   collecting the fees that would be used to acquire the 
 
           11   lands that are proposed for conservation under the 
 
           12   plans. 
 
           13              So -- and some of those lands are going to 
 
           14   be threatened in the meantime, too, if this thing gets 
 
           15   extended.  So that's one critical factor.  What can be 
 
           16   done without triggering recirculation, essentially 
 
           17   wholesale rewriting and going back a long ways in the 
 
           18   process.  Within that framework, I think based on the 
 
           19   input received, CVAG has an obligation to look at a 
 
           20   range of possibilities for modifying the plan and 
 
           21   seeing what can be done.  Obviously, the wildlife 
 
           22   agencies and BLM and the local entities are all going 
 
           23   to have to try to come to some agreement on that. 
 
           24                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thank you, Bill. 
 
           25              Jim, while you were out hang gliding, 
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            1   Danella volunteered you to give us a two-minute update 
 
            2   on the sign working group. 
 
            3                 MR. FOOTE:  I can probably do that in 
 
            4   less than two minutes. 
 
            5                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  That would be great. 
 
            6                 MR. FOOTE:  I can't remember the date we 
 
            7   had scheduled for the last convening of that, but that 
 
            8   pretty much fell apart.  John Ladely was our lone 
 
            9   attendee.  But anyway, Gary and I had further 
 
           10   discussions on what might be the best way to proceed 
 
           11   in the absence of resounding participation in that. 
 
           12   And the final decision was to, at least for the 
 
           13   agencies, to develop a draft of that plan and then 
 
           14   recirculate it among the sign committee so that we 
 
           15   have a product from which we can move forward. 
 
           16                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Working group, not 
 
           17   subcommittee.  Working group. 
 
           18                 MR. FOOTE:  I'm sorry. 
 
           19                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Thanks, Jim.  Any 
 
           20   closing comments on the MAC?  Buford? 
 
           21                 MR. CRITES:  Quickly reminding folks at 
 
           22   1 o'clock there is a trail dedication in Palm Desert 
 
           23   up at the National Monument Visitors Center.  And also 
 
           24   lunch is here, and it was the chair's turn to buy 
 
           25   today.  And the chair is obviously not a chair today. 
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            1   So we thank Gary and State Parks for their lunch. 
 
            2                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  I will send a bill to 
 
            3   the governor's office. 
 
            4                 MR. MORGAN:  Just a point.  This I guess 
 
            5   has to do with signage, recreation, both Forest 
 
            6   Service and BLM Big Horn Sheep. 
 
            7              In recent times it seems like people are 
 
            8   getting lost on the Guadeloupe Trail on a weekly 
 
            9   basis.  This requires helicopters flying round.  It's 
 
           10   Big Horn Sheep lambing season.  If you are knowing 
 
           11   where you are going, it's not that difficult to follow 
 
           12   the trail, but a lot of people seem not to know where 
 
           13   they are going.  And this is generating a lot of 
 
           14   rescues, which in turn disturbs the sheep, which in 
 
           15   turn will upset the wildlife agencies. 
 
           16              Would it be possible for the BLM and the 
 
           17   Forest Service to go down that trail and put some 
 
           18   signs on it, and then people can find their way home 
 
           19   before it goes dark? 
 
           20                 MS. HENDERSON:  Are they going to 
 
           21   illuminate? 
 
           22                 MR. MORGAN:  They can have whatever they 
 
           23   want.  They can have flashing red lights.  It's 
 
           24   getting to be a real problem for the Big Horn Sheep in 
 
           25   this season is the helicopter rescues, and it's 
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            1   something that I believe is avoidable by just a few 
 
            2   signs. 
 
            3                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Okay.  Danella and Gail 
 
            4   heard that.  Any other comments?  Danella. 
 
            5                 MS. GEORGE:  Just before we close, I 
 
            6   would like to make sure I capture the votes, 
 
            7   decisions, and what needs to happen for the next MAC. 
 
            8                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Okay. 
 
            9                 MS. GEORGE:  Are we there? 
 
           10                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  Yes, we are there. 
 
           11                 MS. GEORGE:  Okay.  What we had, we had 
 
           12   a vote that agreed we would recharter; right?  And we 
 
           13   had a vote to agree for a work group on hang gliding. 
 
           14   We will come back and report next meeting. 
 
           15              We had a work group that Mary is going to 
 
           16   chair on branding.  And we have agreed that we will 
 
           17   have a presentation on the new fee structure, with 
 
           18   help from John Ladely.  We are going to need some 
 
           19   historical information on Adventure Pass from the 
 
           20   Forest Service to be able to present. 
 
           21              We are going to have a laundry list of 
 
           22   really what is going to be funded for this year.  Is 
 
           23   that what you want for what's being funded for fiscal 
 
           24   year '05? 
 
           25                 MR. HAVERT:  What is not being funded. 
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            1                 MS. GEORGE:  What is not being funded. 
 
            2                 MR. HAVERT:  The emphasis on what is 
 
            3   missing.  What is the needs list. 
 
            4                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  It would be nice to 
 
            5   have both. 
 
            6                 MS. GEORGE:  Do you want both, then, 
 
            7   what is and what isn't?  And so what is and what 
 
            8   isn't.  And then also we want to have -- something 
 
            9   Bary wanted was the staff, the table of organization I 
 
           10   think he asked to be presented.  Is that right? 
 
           11                 MR. HAVERT:  And an overall budget. 
 
           12                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  He wanted to know how 
 
           13   it was funding in the Monument. 
 
           14                 MS. GEORGE:  Okay.  So this is for June. 
 
           15   And with that, I'm done. 
 
           16                 CHAIRMAN WATTS:  That would be June 4th 
 
           17   is the next MAC meeting?  So any other comments before 
 
           18   we adjourn?  I think we stand adjourned. 
 
           19         (The proceeding was concluded at 12 noon.) 
 
           20                       -O0O- 
 
           21 
 
           22 
 
           23 
 
           24 
 
           25 
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            1         R E P O R T E R' S   C E R T I F I C A T E 
 
            2 
 
            3 
 
            4   STATE OF CALIFORNIA       ) 
 
            5                             )      ss. 
 
            6   COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE       ) 
 
            7 
 
            8         I, Judith W. Gillespie, a Certified Shorthand 
 
            9   Reporter, No. 3710, for the State of California, do 
 
           10   hereby certify: 
 
           11         That the said hearing, taken down by me in 
 
           12   stenotype at the time and place therein stated, was 
 
           13   thereafter reduced to printed form by computer-aided 
 
           14   transcription under my direction and is an accurate 
 
           15   transcription of the oral proceedings in this matter, 
 
           16   to the best of my ability. 
 
           17         I further certify that I am not of counsel or 
 
           18   attorney for either of the parties hereto or in any 
 
           19   way interested in the event of this cause, and that I 
 
           20   am not related to any of the parties hereto. 
 
           21 
 
           22         In witness whereof, I have hereunto subscribed 
 
           23   my name this 16th day of February, 2005. 
 
           24 
                             _____________________________________ 
           25                  JUDITH W. GILLESPIE, CSR, RPR 
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Letters submitted/documents for the record:  
 
 
Bighorn Sheep research, Observations 
 
From part one of a three part series titled 

First of a 3-Part Series 

Desert Bighorn Sheep 

The Plight of Anza-Borrego's 

By Mark Jorgense, http://www.desertusa.com/magjan98/abbighornfjan_bighorn1.html The Future 

 
 To maintain a sheep population, about 25% of the season's lambs should survive. The Vallecito 

group has maintained a population of about 30. The Coyote Canyon group is declining due to Mountain 

Lions. The Palmi Tubb, and the Southern Santa Rosa groups seem to be holding, with the loss of a few to 

Mountain Lions. 

 
 An alarming decline has been occurring in the southern end of the park. In Carrizo Gorge, we 

have documented a drop from about 120 sheep in 1972 to less that 40. 

 
 Off-road vehicles, trespassing cattle, poaching in the 1960s and early '70s, drought, disease and 

Mountain Lion predation have worked together to push this population to the edge. We hope we can save 

this group before it is too late. 

 
 http://www.desertusa.com/magfeb98/abbighorn/jan_bighorn2.htm 
 
 From part two of the three part series we find: 
 
 The Rangers use powered aircraft to herd and track the bighorn sheep. Which I take to mean that 

sheep really aren't threatened by aircraft. Otherwise why would the people in charge of their survival use 

such threatining means. 

 
 People often ask me what I do while I'm flying around as a pilot for California State Parks. 

Sometimes I like to tell them that I am a "shepherd" and then watch their reactions. It usually gets their 

attention enough to allow me a few brief moments of explanation and interpretation. 

 

 According to Webster's New Collegiate Dictionary, a shepherd is a person who tends or guards 

sheep, and tends means to watch over. So in fact, I am a shepherd in the most modern sense of the 

word. My staff is the electronic gadgetry the plane is equipped with, and the flock are the Peninsular 

Bighorn Sheep that are trapped within the natural confines of Anza-Borrego Desert State Park and other 

protected wilderness areas in Southern California. 

 



 Using radio telemetry from the air, I am able to receive signals from sheep that have been fitted 

with electronic collars, and monitor their whereabouts. Equally important, I can also detect when one of 

them has died. In our efforts to save the dwindling population of Bighorn Sheep, we need first to discover 

why they are dying in such large numbers. 

 

 The California Department of Fish and Game and the Bighorn Institute in Palm Desert are 

working with California State Parks. Together, we've used fixed wing aircraft for surveillance and 

helicopters to capture and fit selected sheep with the radio collars. The aircraft are an important tool for 

this process of scientific analysis because of the rugged terrain and vast wilderness in which the Bighorn 

roam and live. 

 
 From the air, after I receive a distant signal, I can easily fly to the most remote areas of the park. 

I'll locate a position by circling directly over the signal, and pinpoint on a map the exact location of the 

animal within about 50 yards. These signals are often undetectable from the ground because of obstacles 

in the terrain. Without the plane, important information about plight of these sheep might be lost forever 

After obtaining a fixed position on the signal from the air, researchers are then able to backpack into the 

location, if need be. They can recover the dead animal, haul it out, and then attempt to discover why it 

died. 

 
 From another article 
 
 http://www. biologicaldiversity .orgjswcbdjspeciesjbighornj 
 

 California State Endangered Species Act (ESA) since 1971, but they have continued their decline 

despite the state listing. Habitat loss for Peninsular bighorn has occurred at an alarming rate, and in 

March, 1998 the population was finally federally listed as endangered-a shameful six years after it was 

originally proposed for listing. The U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service (FWS) determined that Peninsular bighorn 

sheep were in danger of extinction throughout a significant portion of their range due to: (1) disease from 

domestic cattle; (2) insufficient lamb recruitment; (3) habitat loss, degradation, and fragmentation by 

urban and commercial development; and (4) predation coinciding with low population numbers. 

 
 Reduced from 1,200 pairs in 1971 to just 280 in 1997, the Peninsular bighorn ranges from the 

San Jacinto Mountains of southern California to the Volcan Tres Virgenes Mountains near Santa Rosalia 

in Baja California. In 1997, golf courses outnumbered bighorn in the Palm Springs area 91 to 75. Dozens 

of additional golf courses and developments are even now scheduled to destroy the bighorn's dwindling 

habitat. 

 
 The real cause of the fall of the bighorn. 
 
 http://www.desertbighorn.cjb.net/ 
 



 At one time there were approximately 2,000,000 bighorn sheep in North America. Now, the 

Bighorn occupy only about 4 percent of their historic ranges, and the population has fallen to about 

25,000, with the California Desert Bighorn numbering approximately 4,000. The causes for their decline, 

which occurred primarily between 1850 and 1900, were competition with livestock for food and water, 

livestock associated parasites and diseases, and persistent and umegulated hunting 

 
 Modern impact on the Desert Bighorn began during the mid-1800s when thousands of gold 

miners and mountain men made their way to California. The meat of the Bighorn was an important part of 

their diet. It was during this period that populations of Bighorn sheep and other wildlife were being 

decimated by unregulated subsistence hunting and by commercial market hunters supplying meat for the 

thousands of new Californians attempting to strike it rich in the gold fields. 

 
 The launching of silent hang gliders from Vista Point, an already high use area, to another high 

traffic use area to land would not consitute a threat to the bighorn sheep. We would only be flying over the 

area quiety and barely noticable. There are other much more serious threats to the bighorn that need to 

be addressed. 

 
 Thank You 
 
 Mike Harper 
 
 Address withheld for Privacy Protection 
 
 USHGA #78996 
 
 Crestline Soaring Society Elsinore 
 
 Hang Gliding Association 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Mike Hilberath 
 
 Address withheld for Privacy Protection 
 
 The Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National Monument Advisory Committee 
 
 Palm Desert City Council Chambers 
  
 73-510 Fred Waring Drive 
 
 Palm Desert, California 
 
 Re: Hang Gliding in the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National Monument 
 
 According to the Federal Land Policy Management Act (FLPMA) and National Environmental 

Policy Act (NEP A), the public is assured to have meaningful" participation in the planning process for 

federally protected lands. The recent approval of the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National 

Monument Management Plan was carried out without needed input to develop land management 

alternatives from the hang gliding Community. And as a 30 year plus user of the lands that now comprise 

the monument, the hang gliding community is a very legitimate recreational use stakeholder in the 

monument planning process. The process of approving the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains 

National Monument Management Plan wholly failed to cooperate and consulate with the hang gliding 

community. Although, the hang gliding community is mentioned by national organization, the United 

States Hang Gliding Association (USHGA), and local hang gliding club, Coachella Valley Hang Gliding 

Association, in the monument planning document itself , no person or organization was ever contacted 

concerning hang gliding in the monument, or the approval process of the monument plan. 

  
 It is due to this fact that the hang gliding community respectfully asks the Monument Advisory 

Committee to request that the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) immediately commence the adoption 

of an amendment to the monument's land use plan that would allow hang gliding in the monument, and to 

immediately suspend the decision to disallow hang gliding in the monument until the amendment has 

been formally reviewed. 

 
 It is our opinion that with careful planning and discussions between the BLM and the hang gliding 

community an entirely different outcome from that presently approved in the plan (the decision to ban 

hang gliding) would be resolved to allow the many recreational uses of the monument lands, including the 

recreational use activity of hang gliding in the monument. 

 
 The hang gliding community is certainly sensitive to the issue of the plight of the Big Horn Sheep, 

and we in no way would make such a request if the data indicated that hang gliding activities are 

qetrimental to the preservation of the Big Horn Sheep. We content that the activities to preserve the Big 

Horn Sheep and the recreational use of the monument for the activity of hang gliding are compatible uses 

of the monument. 



 
 In support of this request, I have added the following excerpts/comments from the plan and 

applicable documents 

 
 The Final Management Plan for the Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National Monument 

states (There is no data that supports the assertion that hang gliding harasses or disrupts bighorn sheep 

lambing activities (PC-129». 

 
 Published in 1994 (Zeitler and Georgii) examined the effects of hang gliding and paragliding on 

wildlife. The authors indicated that in areas that are regularly overflown by both hang gliders and other 

aircraft, animals remained unaffected by the disturbance. After two years of study, there was no indication 

of harm to wildlife 

 
 Miller and Smith (1985) found that bighorn sheep had a stronger adverse reaction to one or two 

humans on the ground than to parked vehicles or a light airplane-circling overhead. 

 
 Many researchers have illustrated that sheep exhibit a response to recreational activities. 

MacArthur et al. (1979 and 1982) found that bighorn sheep exhibited elevated heart rates in response to 

the presence of people, especially when people were approaching with a dog or from over a ridge. 

 

 Papouchis et al. (2000) found that bighorn sheep had a greater flight response to hikers than to 

mountain bikers or cars. 

 
 King and Workman (1986) noted that responses may be more severe in areas where animals 

have historically been exposed to relatively high levels of human activity. In addition, the history of 

hunting bighorn sheep may be an important variable to consider when evaluating the impacts of human 

disturbance in bighorn habitat (King and Workman 1986, see also Hansen). 

 
 With the above listed research it is clear that hikers may be more of a threat, if at all a true threat, 

to Big Horn Sheep, than hang glider users. In addition, there certainly are many more hikers and other 

users of the monument than hang glider users. Those hang glider pilots who use the Vista Point launch to 

participate in the recreational sport of hang gliding are very limited in number. 

 
 Hikers and other non-mechanized recreation are allowed in the Peninsular Ranges Hang Gliders 

Users are not. The Santa Rosa and San Jacinto Mountains National Monument Approved Management 

Plan has singled out a small group of users (hang glider pilots) and is holding them to different standards 

than all other users. 

 
 (h) OVERFLIGHTS. 
 



 (1) GENERAL RULE.-Nothing in this Act or the management plan prepared for the National 

Monument shall be construed to restrict or preclude overflights, including low- level overflights, over lands 

in the National Monument, including military, commercial, and general aviation overflights that can be 

seen or heard within the National Monument. Nothing in this Act or the management plan shall be 

construed to restrict or preclude the designation or creation of new units of special use airspace or the 

establishment of military flight training routes over the National Monument. 

 
 The Vista Point launch is connected to state highway 74. The launch area is only a few square 

feet that is made of asphalt and was put in place by the California Highway Dept. There are no resources 

that are affected by foot launching of light, silent, non-power aircraft (hang gliders/paragliders) from Vista 

Point. 

 
 Hang glider users require and cover much less real estate than most if not all other mechanized 

or non-mechanized recreational users. 

 
 Vista Point is frequently visited by many cars, trucks and people and allowed as users. The many 

cars, trucks and people at Vista Point move frequently and are allowed to utilize Vista Point as users. 

Hang glider users are few, have a historical use of Vista Point, and are disallowed at Vista Point. Studies 

show that hikers (people), and moving cars are more noticeable to Big Horn Sheep than silent non-power 

foot launched aircraft (hang gliders). 

 
 Conclusion: 
 
 The hang gliding community feels that the decision to ban hang gliding in the monument is 

incorrect and that the process by which that decision was made was flawed. We wish to amend the 

monument land use plan to include the recreational sport activities of hang gliding in the monument. The 

hang gliding Community looks forward to working with the Monument Advisory Committee and all other 

agencies concerning this matter. 

  
 Mike Hilberath 
 
 Cc: Gail Acheson, BLM  
  
 Jim Foote, BLM 
 
 Buford Crites, Mayor City of Palm Desert 
 
 Ruth Wenstrom, U.S. Forest Service 
 
 John Greynald, USHGA Region 3 Director 
 
 Tad Hurst, USHGA Region 3 Director 
 
  
 



 Ken Howells 
 
 Address withheld for Privacy Protection 
 
 Santa Rosa & Santa Rosa Mountains National Monument Advisory 
 
 Committee Planning Meeting 
 
 Palm Desert City Council Chambers 
 
 73-510 Fred Waring Drive 
 
 Palm Desert, Californi 
 
 2/5/2005 
 
 Hello, 
 
 The main issue of contention regarding the decision to ban hang gliding activities within the Santa 

Rosa & San Jacinto Mountains National Monument is that a segment of the public with a direct stake in 

the use of these publicly owned lands was not afforded the oppoJ;tunity to provide input to the .decision-

qlaking process. The decision seems to have been made on the basis of some spurious concerns about 

the effect of hang gliders on Bighorn Sheep and, probably, bias on the part of an individual or individuals 

within the planning group. 

 
 In flying hang gliders over the San Bernardino Mountains and other places for 20 years, I have 

had many opportunities to fly over wildlife including deer, bears, mountain lions, and other larger animals. 

Soaring above these creatures I have never perceived that they noticed my presence in the least. In 

general, animals larger than rabbits have no instinctive need to fear airborne predators and so they are 

blissfully unaware of hang gliders. A little investigation into groups such as the Crestline Soaring Society 

in the San Bernardino area will show that we pilots are good stewards of the land and the environment. 

Our form of recreation, silent and powered directly by the forces of nature, leads us to an intimate, 

cooperative relationship with the environment, rather than the destructive and intruding nature of many 

other types of recreation. Our use of the land itself is quite minimal, as safe launch areas are few and we 

require only a few hundred square feet to assemble and launch our aircraft. After launch we are creatures 

of the air, affecting. the lands below in no way at all, and our landings are on flat ground, either in a 

designated spot in the. vicinity of launch, allowing eaSy retrieval or, hopefully, many miles away. 

 
 The sight of a few hang gliders flying around is generally considered by those who notice them to 

be an enhancement to an area, something quintessentially Californian, embodying freedom and beauty. 

In the San Bernardino Mountains the flying community has even been enlisted by the USFS to provide a 

security role; they have requested that we notify them of the presence and activities of those who are 

violating the restrictions placed on ground activities in the areas protected since the recent forest fires. 

Many pilots travel to Southern California from Arizona and points east to fly their hang gliders, traveling 



on 1-10 right past the desert communities to fly in other areas. Many would take the opportunity to fly 

from the Santa Rosas, and would in all likelihood spend some of their vacation dollars in the local 

community, before going on to spend those dollars in other areas.. On a personal note, I have family in La 

Quinta and elsewhere nearby; they would appreciate it if . I could fly here, as I'd visit the m more often. 

 
 Please amend the land use guidelines to allow hang gliding in the Santa Rosa & San Jacinto 

Mountains National Monument, as it would be a benefit to all concerned and a detriment to none, not 

even wildlife. 

 
 Thank You. 
 
 Ken Howells 
 
 San Bernardino, CA 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 Dear National Monument Advisory Committee, 
 
 My name is Daniel Pifko. I am an engineer who lives in San Francisco and comes to visit family in 

Palm Desert three or four times a year along with my own wife and two children. I am also a hang glider 

pilot and president of the Fort Funston hang gliding club. 

 
 While I will not be in your area to attend the Feb. 5 Monument Advisory Committee meeting I'd 

like to write in support of hang gliding activities at Vista Point. I am confident the local pilots will be able to 

come up with a launch and landing plan that works in peaceful concert with the other land uses. 

 
 Being a hang glider pilot, I usually bring down my flying gear and trek out to fly at 

Marshall/Crestline near San Bernardino. I've been up to Vista Point several times to hike and enjoy the 

view. 

 
 As a general rule, the hang glider pilots I've had the pleasure to know are great stewards of the 

environment. We fly ships that are closest to sailboats in their impact on the environment - quiet, 

peaceful, non-polluting, and in touch with the wind and weather. Those that are attracted to hang gliders 

are, practically by definition, most interested in experiencing the outdoors in the most untouched, natural 

way. As a result, the hang gliding sites I have seen are actually better off with us being there, practically 

aiding the ranger/park service/other groups in charge as deputy rangers while not destroying the site with 

undue noise, traffic, pollution, or other menaces. 

 
 A few cases from my area where we have worked well with other stakeholders: 
 
 - At St. John Mtn. in northern California, several Sonoma Wings club members have 

pitched in to help the the US Forest Service (Mendocino National Forest) at work parties that create 

campgrounds, build fences, and restore whatever areas are in need 

 
 - A bay area pilot was airborne at Windy Hill Nature Preserve near Palo Alto when he 

noticed a car off the road. He phoned in the sighting and was instrumental in finding the older couple that 

had gone missing and was stuck in the car. The car was very difficult to see from anywhere but the air. 

 
 - At Fort Funston in San Francisco we get a steady flow of tourists and dog walkers who 

come out to enjoy the sight of colorful hang gliders against the ocean background. In addition to providing 

great PR for the city just by flying, we hand out stickers to visiting kids, answer numerous questions from 

non-pilots walking out to the observation deck, and watch out for public safety from aloft. We enjoy a 

great relationship with the Golden Gate National Recreation Area (GGNRA) rangers that administer the 

park. 

 
 I hope you will look favorably on hang gliding as a beneficial activity at the Santa Rosa and San 

Jacinto Mountains National Monument and look forward to hearing the outcome of these meetings. 



 

 Daniel Pifko 
 
 President, Fort Funston Hang Gliding Club 
 
 
 




